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CHAIRMAN’ S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IREGEREERN MR

Financial results

For the year ended 31st March, 2011, Oriental Watch
Holdings Limited has recorded a total turnover of HK$3,849
million and a net profit of HK$219 million. This showed
an increase of 19% and 95% respectively, over the
previous period. The Board of Directors of the company
is appreciative of these results as they represent the
company’s highest growth rate to date.

Business review

During the course of last year, the retail business for luxury
products experienced a sharp and fruitful rebound from
the previous period’s downturn. This rebound is mainly the
result of the continued exponential growth in luxury-seeking
Mainland Chinese customers. As the middle class of China
begins to grow, this appetite for luxury goods has just been
unleashed.

The Company is now operating 12 shops in Hong Kong,
2 shops in Macau, 37 shops in the PRC and 2 associate
shops in Taiwan.

Hong Kong and Macau

Our shops in Hong Kong and Macau performed very well
this period. The high rental prices in both districts are still a
large factor in putting pressure on the company’s expenses,
as the company continues to work on controlling costs for
better margins.

PRC

Our current businesses in the PRC are operating
successfully and have also seen an increase in turnover this
period. The company will be opening a new Rolex shop in
Shanghai, which will be located in the House of Roosevelt
building in the prestigious Bund district.

MBRE

HE—_Z——F=ZA=+—HIL ®AHX
TEBAXRFEE 2 & %% 53,849,000,000
7 7T IR FE 15 & A & 219,000,000 %
T D RIE EF EF19% K 95% ° iE 2
FFEREEERESN—X  EERIEER

o
=)

£ 3E1)-

BE—F BAMAREATEXRAEAS
EMGEER o = ERPNEABERSREM
BENPTERFPAXASZ  KMESRE
)R E BN - WAITFRPRE -

SEREHEESEEAE H12H - B2
@ BR37HE - Ra&2HEEE -

EBRAFT

RERT - RS AT 2 R o Tl
Bemh ERMLENIRTES - F
B AMEREZHEHRE BEE
7 o

£ [ B
BRIRFEBRNERBIEERY  NRFEEE
XHEBELT - —FURLEBNSENEE

BEBRARETHE  DEREINERER
ZRMEMREAEA -

—ZE — —F F 3, Annual Report 2011



CHAIRMAN’ S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRBEREEEIRR DM

Taiwan

The company’s acquired partnership with Yung Hsin Watch
Co. during the period has generated and contributed
positive returns. As the Taiwan market slowly opens to the
Chinese tourist market, we anticipate continued positive
results.

Prospects

Further to supporting this past period’s growth and to
paving the road for continued growth in the future, the
company works to maximize its returns while controlling
its expenditures. We employ in-house inventory control
measures which help to keep inventory costs to a minimum.
Staff members continue to benefit from training to increase
and keep service standards at a high level, resulting in a
higher return customer base. These and other measures are
steps the company is taking to continuously improve.

This year marks the company’s 50th anniversary as a
successful watch retailer in Hong Kong and the PRC. It will
be a year marked by celebration and continued dedication
to our customers and business. We thank our customers,
staff, and shareholders for their continued support and
efforts on the company’s behalf.

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March, 2011, the Group’s total equity reached
HK$1,865 million, compared with HK$1,396 million as
at 31st March, 2010. The Group had net current assets
of HK$1,693 million, including bank and cash balances
of HK$601 million as at 31st March, 2011 compared
with balances of HK$1,274 million and HK$225 million
respectively as at 31st March, 2010. At 31st March, 2011,
bank loans and overdrafts totalled HK$301 million (31st
March, 2010: HK$307 million). At 31st March, 2011, the
gearing ratio (defined as total bank borrowing on total
equity) was 0.16 (31st March, 2010: 0.22).
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CHAIRMAN’ S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IREGEREERN MR

Management still considers that financial position of the
Group is healthy with adequate funds and unused banking
facilities. The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
The Group did not face significant risk from exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuations.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s sale and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not face significant risk from exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

As at 31st March, 2011, our Group had approximately 870
employees all over Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC, in
which approximately 70% of whom were in Mainland China.
The total manpower is around the same as last year.

The Group’s compensation package, which includes basic
salary, commission, annual bonus, medical insurance, and
other common benefits, is structured by reference to the
marketplace and individual merits, and is reviewed on an
annual basis based on the Group policy’s performance
system and objective specification performance appraisal.

We deeply believe every customer does have expectations
on the service they obtained. Thus, we must always strive
to provide service beyond their expectations in order to
maintain the most excellent quality and comprehensive of
service. As such, more resources have been allocated to
the Staff Training and Development aspect. Since January
2009, we commissioned an independent consulting firm
to conduct a continuous “Mystery Shoppers Programme
(MSP)”. This programme has helped the management to
gauge and monitor the overall service performance of our
sales team. By analyzing the results of MSP, we are able
to identify the areas for improvements in a more specific
way such that our future training programme could be
tailor-made to specific shop/individual level. All the effort
is to align with the company’s philosophy of providing
“Service Excellence” to customers, with the aim of impelling
the Group’s business and making great strides forward
unceasingly.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSHAEEE

Mr. YEUNG Ming Biu, aged 75, the Chairman of the
Company, is a Co-founder of the Group. He has over 58
years’ experience in the watch business and is a Permanent
Honorary Director of The Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades and Industries Limited.

Mr. YEUNG Him Kit, Dennis, aged 42, joined the Group
in 1993. He became Managing Director of the Company
in March 2003. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce
from the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Yeung is the
son of Mr. Yeung Ming Biu.

Mr. FUNG Kwong Yiu, aged 67, joined the Group in 1974
and has over 46 years’ experience in the watch business.
He is a Permanent Honorary Director of The Federation of
Hong Kong Watch Trades and Industries Limited.

Madam YEUNG Man Yee, Shirley, aged 49, joined the
Group in 1991. She received a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies and Diploma in Watch and Jewellery Management
from North Herts College in the United Kingdom and CFH
Institute in Switzerland respectively. Madam Yeung is the
daughter of Mr. Yeung Ming Biu.

Mr. LAM Hing Lun, Alain, aged 52, joined the Group in
1992. He is the Finance Director and Company Secretary
of the Company and became Director of the Company in
April 2003. He is responsible for the Group’s accounting,
financial control and secretarial matters. He has over 26
years’ experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Lam
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the
University of Hull. He is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an Associate
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. CHOI Kwok Yum, aged 56, joined the Group in 1969.

He became Director of the Company in April 2003 and has
over 41 years’ experience in the watch business.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSHAEEE

Dr. SUN Ping Hsu, Samson (“Dr. Sun”), M.B.E., J.P.,
aged 86, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since September 1993. He is the Chairman
of Sun International Group of companies. He was Deputy
Chairman and a Director of Gilman & Co., Ltd. and Inchcape
Hong Kong respectively from 1967 to 1985. Dr. Sun is
the Honorary Permanent President of The Federation of
Hong Kong Watch Trades and Industries Limited. He has
over 57 years’ experience in the manufacturing, marketing
and distribution of watches, and 25 years’ experience in
the marketing and distribution of consumer and electronic
products. He has involved in the PRC trade since 1979,
and continues to be active in both trading and property
development in the PRC. Dr. Sun has chaired many
voluntary community services and charitable organisations.
He was a Member of Basic Law of HKSAR Consultative
Committee in 1980’s. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director of National Electronics Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0213), and Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 0131).

Dr. LI Sau Hung, Eddy, aged 56, has over 36 years’
experience in the manufacturing business. He is a Member
of the National Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and the President of Hong Kong
Economic & Trade Association and a Member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee. Mr. Li
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration and a
PhD Degree in Economics. He was the 1991 awardee of
The Ten Outstanding Young Persons and the 1993 awardee
of Young Industrialists of Hong Kong. He has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 1993. He is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of Man Yue International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0894), Midas International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1172) and Get Nice Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0064) companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSHAEEE

Mr. CHOI Man Chau, Michael, aged 54, is a Fellow
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is a Certified Public Accountant (practising)
and has been practising public accountancy in Hong Kong
for over 21 years. Mr. Choi is also an Independent Non-
executive Director of Hunan Nonferrous Metals Corporation
Limited (stock code: 2626) and Simsen International
Corporation Limited (stock code: 0993), companies listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He was formerly an Independent Non-executive
Director of Nam Tai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited
(stock code: 2633) and Dynamic Energy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0578), companies listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. TANG Tai Wai, David, aged 66, is the General
Manager of China division. He is responsible for sales and
marketing in the PRC. He joined the Group in 1993 and has
over 41 years’ experience in the watch business.

Mr. SZE Yuk Woo, aged 60, is the General Manager
overseeing the Group’s general operation in the PRC. He
joined the Group in 1997 and has over 41 years’ experience
in the watch business.

Mr. YEUNG Chi On, aged 51, is the General Manager
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1980 and has over 30 years’ experience in the
watch business.

Mr. LAM Tung Hing, aged 53, is the General Manager and
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 31 years’ experience in the
watch business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PN
ERERRE

The Company strives to attain and maintain the high
standard of corporate governance as it believes that
effective corporate governance are fundamental to
enhancing shareholder value and safe guarding shareholder
interests. The Company has accordingly adopted good
corporate governance principles that emphasize a
quality board of Directors (“the Board”), effective internal
control, stringent disclosure practices and transparency
and accountability to all stakeholders. It is, in addition,
committed to continuously improving these practices and
inculcating an ethical corporate culture.

The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group emphasize a quality board, sound internal control,
and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2011, the Company
has complied with the code provisions prescribed in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Codes”) set
out in the Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Listing Rules”) except for the deviation from the Code
Provision A.4.1 which is explained in the following relevant
paragraph.

The Company has adopted the Model Mode set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors (“the
Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Code for the year under
review.
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CORPORATE GOVERANCE REPORT
CEEABE

Function and Composition of the Board

The Board is responsible for directing the strategic
objectives of the Company and overseeing the management
of the business. The Directors are charged with the task
of promoting the success of the Company and making
decisions in the best interest of the Company.

The Board, led by the Chairman, Mr. Yeung Ming Biu,
approves and monitors Group wide strategies and
policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates
the performance of the Company, and supervises the
management of the Company (“Management”). Management
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Group Managing Director.

At 31st March, 2011, the Board comprised nine Directors,
including the Chairman, Group Managing Director, Group
Finance Director, three Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the Directors and Senior
Management Section on pages 6 to 8. The composition of
the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group.

For a Director to be considered independent, the Board
must determine that the Director does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group. In determining
the independence of Directors, the Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive
The Role of the Chairman is separate from that of Group

Managing Director. Such division of responsibilities helps to
reinforce their independence and accountability.

RAKITEBEFR DT Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PN
ERERRE

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to,
and overseeing the functions of, the Board to ensure that
the Board acts in the best interest of the Group and the
Board meetings are planned and conducted effectively. The
Chairman is responsible for approving the agenda of each
Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate,
matters proposed by Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
With the support of Executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
are properly informed on issues arising at Board meetings
and provided with adequate and accurate information in
a timely manner. The Chairman also actively encourages
Directors to be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs and
make contribution to the Board’s functions. The Board,
under the leadership of the Chairman, has adopted good
corporate governance practices and procedures and taken
appropriate steps to provide effective communication with
shareholders.

The Group Managing Director, Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis, is
responsible for managing business of the Group, attending
to the formulation and successful implementation of the
Group policies and assuming full accountability to the Board
for all Group operations. Acting as the principal manager of
the Group’s business, the Group Managing Director attends
to developing strategic operating plans that reflect the long-
term objectives and priorities established by the Board
and is directly responsible for maintaining the operational
performance of the Group. Working with the other Executive
Directors and the executive management team of each
core business divisions, he ensures that the Board is fully
apprised of the funding requirements of the business of
the Group and presents annual budgets to the Board for
consideration and approval. With the assistance of the
Group Finance Director, the Group Managing Director sees
to it that the funding requirements of the business are met
and he closely monitors the operating and financial results
of the business against plans and budgets, taking remedial
action when necessary. He maintains an ongoing dialogue
with the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully
informed of all major business development and issues. He
is also responsible for building and maintaining an effective
team to support him in his role.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there
are three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board of Directors. Among the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, one of them have
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors the written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company based on such confirmation, considers Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Mr. Choi
Man Chau, Michael to be independent.

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. However, the independent non-executive directors
were not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation in annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
The management of the Company considered that there
is no imminent need to revise the letter of appointment of
independent non-executive directors by adding a specific
term in the letter of appointment.

Board Meetings and Practices

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
and the Board will also meet on other occasions when
a board-level decision on a particular matter is required.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of the
Group provides information to Directors on a regular basis
on the activities and development in the business of the
Group. Throughout the year, Directors participate in the
consideration and approval of routine and operational
matters of the Company by way of circular resolutions
with supporting explanatory materials, supplemented by
additional verbal/written information or notification from the
Company Secretary and other executives as when required.
Details of material or notable transactions of subsidiary
companies are provided to the Directors as appropriate.
Whenever, warranted, additional Board meetings are held.
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The Directors will receive details of agenda items for
decision and minutes of committee meeting in advance of
each Board meeting. With respect to regular meeting of
the Board, Directors receive written notice of the meeting
at least 14 days in advance and agenda with supporting
Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the meetings.
With respect to the other meetings, Directors are given
as much as notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances.

The Company Secretary, Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through the adherence to proper Board processes and the
timely preparation and dissemination to Directors and Board
Committees comprehensive Board agendas and papers.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and that it takes these into consideration when making
decisions for the Group. The Company Secretary is also
directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with all
obligations of the Listing Rules including publications
and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the periods laid down in the Listing Rules,
timely dissemination to shareholders and the market of
announcement and information relating to the Group and
assisting in the notification of Directors’ dealings in securities
of the Group.

The Company Secretary advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in
the annual report of the Company.

In relation to connected transactions, regular seminars
are conducted for executives from business units within
the Group to ensure that such transactions are handled
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Details analyses are
performed on all potential connected transactions to ensure
full compliance and for Directors’ considerations.
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Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or
her duty may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group
through their initial induction, ongoing participation at Board
and Committee meetings, and through meeting with key
members of the Management.

During the year ended 31st March, 2011, Board meetings
and Directors attendance records for the meetings held are
set out below:

ENEZSIRSHKBIEXERARDE
TERE BOASKARER  ERH
AREELE - BBABBEN  HE2HEE
EehLEeeRRAEREETIBKER
T3 ARAHBEERIT AR
o WHREIANERE 2 TR o

RBE-T——F=A=+—ALFE
N EEEERRSEERMBTESEY
HE ST T

Directors’
Attendance
ESHER
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Yeung Ming Biu "' — Chairman BEEEEY — £F 4/4
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis " BiTH R ED 4/4
— Group Managing Director — SEESRKIE
Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu SRR - 4/4
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley " HEEr " 4/4
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain — Group Finance Director MEBEE — SENBES 4/4
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum BRI AE 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIIHITESE
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson FRIEEL 4/4
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FHEFL 4/4
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael BN 4/4
Notes: Mt -

(1) Mr. Yeung Bing Biu is the father of Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
and the Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published
in a timely manner of the year end and the half year.

The following statement, which set out the responsibilities
of the Directors in relation to the financial statements,
should be read in conjunction with, but distinguished from,
the Independent Auditor’s report on pages 35 to 37 which
acknowledge the reporting responsibilities of the Group’s
Auditor.

Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Annual Report and financial statements
of the Company to ensure that the financial statements
give a true and fair presentation in accordance with Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting
standards.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group applies appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied and makes judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements of the
Group could be prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within
the Group.
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Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquires, consider
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that,
for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparation the financial statements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Board is satisfied with Deloitte in respect of the audit
fees they charged, the process and its effectives of the audit
and has resolved to recommend their reappointment as
the Company’s external auditor at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

During the financial year, the services provided by, and the
associated remuneration paid to Deloitte were as follows:

HHREE

RIFELBEEERE  EZR/AEEER
RWEREFNRARAREELE FIEE
RNFTEZ ENEERBRYBEHE -

BEET B =

EEC EMEYRHEEMBERZZEE
A BEHERELREARE - XHEREERN
EEBRAFRG EERALERARAZ
SNESAZ BIRD

RAMBFRER - BEBIRH 2 R LAE
Sz HEMET

HK$’000

FET

Audit FET 2,540
Taxation and non-audit services 5 & IE AT RS 208
2,748

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-
executive Directors who possess the appropriate business
and financial management experience and skills to
understand financial statements and internal controls. It is
chaired by Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson with Dr. Li Sau Hung,
Eddy , and Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael as members.

Under the term of reference of the Audit Committee, it is
required to oversee the relationship between the Company
and its external auditor, review the Group’s preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements,
monitor compliance with statutory and Listing Rules
requirements, review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the activities of the Group’s internal audit functions, engage
independent legal or other advisers as it determines is
necessary and perform investigations.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by
the Board are published on the Group’s website.

During the year ended 31st March, 2011, 2 meetings were
held. The attendance records for the audit committee
meetings are set out below:

RSB AL o

REBEE-_ZT——F=A=+—HLFER
BITTMAER BREEEERIHLF
fERETIAT

Directors’
Attendance
EEHER
Members of the Audit Committee ERLTETKE
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson FERIEEL 2/2
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy THEFL 2/2
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael B2SUM A 2/2
Financial Statements BB E

The Audit committee meets with the Group Finance Director
and other senior management of the Group from time to
time to review the interim and final results and the Interim
Report and Annual Report of the Group and other financial,
internal control and risk management matters of the Group.
It considers and discusses the reports and presentations of
Management, the Group internal and external auditors, with
a view of ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. It also meets
the Group’s external auditor, Deloitte, to consider its reports
on the scope and outcome of their independent review of
the interim financial report and on their annual audit of the
consolidated financial statements.

External Auditor

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditor’'s independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process. It has received representing from
Deloitte of their independence and objectively and
holds meetings with Deloitte to consider the scope of
their audit, approve the fees thereon, and the scope
and appropriateness of non-audit services, if required,
to be provided by it. The Audit Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the external auditor.
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The Group’s policy regarding the engagement of Deloitte for
various services listed below is as follows:

e  Audit services — includes audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by
external auditor.

e  Audited related services — included services that
would normally be provided by an external auditor
but not generally included in audit fees, for example,
audit of the Group’s pension plans, due diligence and
accounting advice related to mergers and acquisitions,
internal control reviews of systems and/or process,
issuance of special audit reports for tax purposes (if
any). The external auditor is to be invited to undertake
these services that it must or are best placed to
undertake in its capacity as auditor.

e  Taxation related services — includes all tax compliance
and tax planning services except for those services
which are provided in connection with the audit. The
Group uses the services of the external auditor where it
is best suited. All other significant taxation related work
may be undertaken by other parties as appropriate.

o Others services — includes, for example audit
or reviews of third parties to assess compliance
with contracts, risk management diagnostics and
assessments, and non-financial system consultations
(if any). The external auditor is also permitted to assist
management and the Group’s internal auditors with
internal investigations and fact-finding into alleged
improprieties. These services are subject to specific
approval by the Audit Committee.

e  General consulting services — the external auditor

is not eligible to provide services involving general
consulting work including accountancy services.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of
internal control. It reviews the process by which the Group
evaluates its control environment and risk assessment
process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed. In addition, it review with the Group’s internal
auditors the work plan for their audit together with their
resources requirements and consider the report to the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of internal controls in the
Group business operations.

These reviews and reports are taken into consideration by
the Audit Committee when it makes its recommendations
to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
including two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and
a Managing Director, Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis. Dr. Sun
Ping Hsu, Samson is the chairman of the Committee. The
Committee meets for the determination of the remuneration
package of Directors and senior management of the Group.
In addition, the Committee also meets as and when required
to consider remuneration related matters.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
assist the Board in achieving its objectives of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest calibre and
experience needed to shape and execute strategy across
the Group’s substantial business operations. It assists
the Group in the administration of a fair and transparent
procedure for setting remuneration policies including
assessing the performance of Directors and senior executive
of the Group and determining their remuneration packages.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
adopted by the Board are published on the Group’s
Website.
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The remuneration of Directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as remuneration
benchmarks from other local and/or international companies
prevailing market conditions. Directors and employees also
participate in bonus arrangement determined in accordance
with the performance of the Group and the individual’s
performance.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2011, one
remuneration committee meeting has been held. Throughout
the financial year, all members of the Remuneration
Committee have reviewed background information on
market data, the Group’s business activities and human
resources issues, and headcounts and staff costs. The
Remuneration Committee has also reviewed and approved
the proposed director fees for year ended 31st March 2011,
year-end bonus and remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31st March, 2011 and made recommendations
to the Board on the directors’ fees for independent non-
executive directors, however, do not participate in the
determination of their own remunerations.

The Company has not established a nomination committee.
However, Executive Directors identify potential new directors
and recommend to the Board for decision. The Board
considers potential directorship based on the candidate’s
qualifications, business experience and suitability to the
Company. During the financial year ended 31st March,
2011, no nomination meeting has held.

Introduction
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system

of internal control and assessment and management of
risks.
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In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to increase
risk awareness across the Group’s business operations
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks. It
also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the systems
of internal control to ensure that the policies and procedures
in place are adequate. Reporting and reviewing activities
include review by the Executive Directors and the Board
and approval of detailed operational and financial reports,
budgets and plans provided by the management of the
business operations, review by the Board of actual results
against budgets, review by the Audit Committee of the
ongoing work of internal audit function and risk management
function, as well as regular business review by Executive
Directors and the executive management team of each core
business division.

Whilst these procedures are designed to identify and
manage risks that could adversely impact the achievement
of the Group’s business objectives, they do not provide
absolute assurance against material mis-statement errors,
losses or fraud.

Internal Control Environment

The Board is overall responsible for monitoring the
operations of the business within the Group. Executive
Directors are appointed to the Board of all material
operating subsidiaries for monitoring of the operations of
those companies, including attendance at Board meetings,
review and approval of business strategies, budgets and
plans, and setting of key business performance targets. The
executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each
business in the division within the agreed strategies and
similarity the management of each business is accountable
for its conduct and performance.

The Group’s internal control procedures include a system for
reporting information to the executive management teams of
each core business and the Executive Directors.
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Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the
management of individual businesses and subject to review
and approval by Executive Directors. Executive Directors
review the differences to the budget and for approval. When
setting budgets, management identifies, evaluates and
reports on the likelihood and potential financial impact of
significant business risks.

The Executive Directors review monthly management reports
on the financial results and key operating statistics of each
business and hold regular meetings with the executive
management team and senior management of business
operations to review these reports, business performance
against budgets, forecasts, significant risk sensitivities and
strategies. In addition, Group Finance Director and members
of his finance team review monthly performance against
budget and forecast, and to address accounting and finance
related matters.

The Group Finance Director has established guidelines
and procedures for approval and control of expenditures.
Operating expenditures are subject to overall budget control
and are controlled within each business with approval level
for such expenditures being set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each executive officer. Capital expenditures
are subject to overall control within the annual budget
review and approval process, and more specific control
and approval prior to commitment by the Group Finance
Director or Executive Directors are required for unbudgeted
expenditures and material expenditures within the approval
budget. Reports of actual versus budgeted and approved
expenditures are also regularly reviewed.

Internal audit department reporting to the Group Managing
Director on regular basis and also directly to the Audit
Committee if necessary, provides independent assurance
as to the existence and the effectiveness of the risk
management activities and controls in the Group’s business
operations. Using risk assessment methodology and taking
into account the dynamics of the Group activities, internal
audit derives its yearly audit plan which is reviewed by the
Audit Committee, and reassessed during the year as needed
to ensure that adequate resources are deployed and the
plan’s objectives are met. Internal audit is responsible for
assessing the Group’s internal control system, formulating
an impartial opinion on the system, and reporting its findings
to the Group Finance Director, Group Managing Director
and the Audit Committee as well as following up on all
reports to ensure that all issues have been satisfactorily
resolved. In addition, a regular dialogue is maintained with
the Group’s external auditors so that both are aware of the
significant factors which may affect their respective scopes

of work.
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Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure
of individual business units, the scope of the work
performed by the internal audit function includes financial
and operations review, recurring and surprise audits, fraud
investigation and productivity effectively reviews.

Reports from the external auditors on internal controls and
relevant financial reporting matters, if any, are presented to
the Group Finance Director and the relevant management
team. These reports are reviewed and the appropriate
actions taken.

Group Risk Management

The Group Managing Director and the Group Finance
Director have the responsibility of developing and
implementing risk mitigation strategies including the
deploying of insurance to transfer the financial impact
of risks. The Group Finance Director is responsible for
arranging appropriate insurance coverage.

Review of Internal Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’ internal control
system for the year ended 31st March, 2011 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and is satisfied that such
system are effective and adequate.

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders of
the Company and investors. Therefore, the Board and the
Group’s senior Management maintain close communications
with investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by
various channels including interviews and meetings. The
Group specially assigns Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain, Group
Finance Director, being the contact person of investor
relations to respond the requests of information and queries
from the investors.
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The Board also welcomes the view of shareholders on
matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
shareholders’ meeting to communicate with the Board or
Management directly.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
performance information of the Group to the shareholders
through publication of notices, announcements, circulars,
interim and annual reports. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices, financial reports to shareholders,
additional information is also available to the shareholders
on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meeting
of the Company, such as the annual general meeting and at
which the Chairman and Directors are available to answer
questions on the Group’s business. All shareholders have
statutory right to call for extraordinary general meeting and
put forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders
by sending to the Company Secretary at the registered
office a written request for such general meeting together
with the proposed agenda items. All substantial resolutions
at the general meeting are decided on a poll. The poll is
conducted by the Group’s Share Registrars and the results
of the poll are published on the websites at The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Group. Financial
and other information is made available on the Group’s
website, which is regularly updated.

RAKITEEBRLD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2011.

The Company acts as an investment holding company as
well as engaged in watch trading. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
38.

An interim dividend of 3.0 Hong Kong cents per share was
declared and paid to the shareholders during the year.
A final dividend of 8.0 Hong Kong cents per share being
proposed by the directors is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

As at 31st March, 2011, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution consisted of contributed surplus of
HK$122,183,000 and retained profits of HK$171,777,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if there are reasonable proceeds for believing that:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium account.
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During the year, the Group incurred approximately HK$36.0
million on the purchase of property, plant and equipment.
Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yeung Ming Biu (Chairman)

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis (Managing Director)
Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain

Mr. Choi Kwok Yum

Independent non-executive directors:

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu, Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley and
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company and the senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31st March, 2011 are set out in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31st March, 2011, the interests of the directors of RIEFEZFHFLIASEN([FALIAEKE
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the ) )& 352 (&3 FIRE ~ B0 MATE 8% -
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept WZE——F=A=+—H AQFzE
under Section 352 of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures ~ ERARR T 2 RMD MBEBRND T ES 2 #
Ordinance (the “SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to the FHNAE BB LT ARNESTETES
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited & S HEAESFRIZBHME RN T REBES
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for X ZFTBEMR AR ([BAFT ) 2 REFWT -
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies

were as follows:

Number of shares held

RO A

Percentage

of issued

share

Total capital

Personal Family  Corporate  number of of the

interest interest interest shares Company

ERRACE

Name of director EEp4 BARR RikER DR ROEE TRAEAN

Mr. Yeung Ming Biu BRELE 14,022,986 6,600,000 106,803,801 127,426,787 27.14%
(note (a))
(Hiit(a)

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis TR L& 1,970,000 - (note (b)) 1,970,000 0.42%
(Mt (b))

Mr. Choi Kwok Yum ZEREE 940,000 - - 940,000 0.20%

Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu BEREE 2,923,467 - (note c)) 2,923,467 0.62%
(Wit (c)

Madam Yeung Man Yee, BRERL 1,000,000 184,301 (note (d)) 1,184,301 0.25%
Shirley (M7 ()

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson FERERT - — 2,200,000 2,200,000 0.47%
(note (e))
(Hiite)

—ZE — —F F 3, Annual Report 2011



28

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

Notes:

(@) Mr. Yeung Ming Biu and his wife, Madam Au Po Kee, are the
beneficial owners of 45% and 22.5% respectively of the issued share
capital of Realtower Holdings Limited. Realtower Holdings Limited
and Mr. Yeung Ming Biu are the respective beneficial owners of 55%
and 10% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 80% of the issued share capital of
Datsun Holdings Limited. Datsun Holdings Limited is the beneficial
owner of 106,480,000 shares in the Company.

Mr. Yeung Ming Biu is the beneficial owner of 47.5% of the issued
share capital of Y.H. Chan Limited, which is the beneficial owner of
25% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited. Y.H.
Chan Limited also directly holds 323,801 shares in the Company.

(b)  Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is the beneficial owner of 10% and 7%
of the issued share capital of Realtower Holdings Limited and Real
Champ Limited respectively. Real Champ Limited is the beneficial
owner of 20% of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited.

(c)  Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu is the beneficial owner of 6% of the issued
share capital of Real Champ Limited.

(d)  Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley is the beneficial owner of 7.5% of
the issued share capital of Realtower Holdings Limited.

(e) Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and his family members are the beneficial
owners of the entire issued share capital of Sun International Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 2,200,000 shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held by a director in trust for the
Company, none of the directors of the Company had any
interest or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s
special general meeting held on 3rd November, 2003, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, options may be granted
to any director, employee, consultant, customer, supplier or
advisor of the Group or a company in which the Company
holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (the
“Eligible Persons”), the trustee of the Eligible Persons or a
company beneficially owned by the Eligible Persons. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
quality personnel and other persons to provide incentive
to them to contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. The total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report
is 25,320 shares. No Eligible Persons shall be granted
an option in any 12-month period for such number of
shares (issued and to be issued) which in aggregate would
exceed 1% of the share capital of the Company in issue
on the last day of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The exercisable period is determined by the directors of
the Company, which shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant, and may include a minimum period for
which the options must be held before it can be exercised.
The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of an
option equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;
and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.
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The Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 2nd
November, 2013.

The following table discloses movements of the options
granted under the Share Options Scheme to directors and

certain employees during the year:

Number of shares under options

BRES A
Exercised Date of

At during At grant of

Name or category of participant 1.4.2010 theyear  31.3.2011 options
R-2-%fF R-B--£ BRE
SRENRAER mA—-H ERfTE ZA=t-R RLAH
Directors X
Mr. Yeung Ming Biu 2,970,000 (2,970,000) — 16.01.2004
BRRLE
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis 2,970,000 (2,970,000) — 16.01.2004
BiTREE
Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu 2,970,000 (2,970,000) — 16.01.2004
BEREE
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley 2,970,000  (2,970,000) — 16.01.2004
BEELT
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain 2,970,000 (2,970,000) — 16.01.2004
WEBL A
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum 2,970,000 (2,970,000) — 16.01.2004
ZEA L
17,820,000 (17,820,000 -

Other employees EftfES 12,430,000  (12,430,000) — 04.06.2007
Total &t 30,250,000 (30,250,000) -

Note: An ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 26th August, 2009
approving a bonus issue of shares to shareholders of the Company
on the basis of one new ordinary share for every ten ordinary shares
held. The number of shares under the outstanding options and the
exercise price per share of the outstanding options were adjusted
accordingly pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
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exercise exercise
price price
per share  per share  Exercisable period
REER gag
TR SRORE ITRDH

HK$ HK$

V-7 V-7

(note)
(Hrzt)

1.702 1547 16.01.2004 — 15.01.2014
1.702 1547  16.01.2004 — 15.01.2014
1.702 1547 16.01.2004 — 15.01.2014
1.702 1547 16.01.2004 — 15.01.2014
1.702 1547  16.01.2004 — 15.01.2014
1.702 1547 16.01.2004 — 15.01.2014
1.764 1.604  04.06.2007 — 03.06.2017
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As at 31st March, 2011, according to the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, the following persons (not being a director or chief
executive of the Company) had interests in the share capital
of the Company.

Name of shareholder

BRR &M

Datsun Holdings Limited
Furama Investments Limited
Realtower Holdings Limited

Realtower Holdings Limited holds 55% of the issued share
capital of Furama Investments Limited which holds 80%
of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, both Realtower Holdings Limited and Furama
Investments Limited are deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the 106,480,000 shares in the Company held
by Datsun Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2011, there was
no person who had any interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company according to
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

AR ARG E 75 MBS 15RPI5 336 15 IRE
FEzZERMAR RZ2FT——%F=A
=t—HB A TAL(UFERARAZE
EHITBARE )R AR R BRAP A ©

Percentage of
issued share
capital of the

Number of Company
shares held EARQFE
FEROEE BITREABEIL
106,480,000 22.68%
106,480,000 22.68%
106,480,000 22.68%

Realtower Holdings Limited# 7% Furama
Investments Limited £ 2 17 & 4~55% -
Furama Investments Limited Bl A& Datsun
Holdings Limited 2 2 1TAR A 80% ° ALt -
BIEE A M HEIE SR - Realtower Holdings
Limited } Furama Investments Limited9
18 A %A Datsun Holdings Limited AT 2
106,480,000 IR AR 2 BIAZ (D #E 2 ©

1 B R TR 5 15 ) 5 336 1698
EGREZERBAS B EXFHEES
S RM=FE——FEZA=+—R S
A ERART 2 47 AR 5 o
(RS TAR -

BIE EMRBNFE 3% - KRR WEF
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There were no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

There is no contract of significance between the Group and
a controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including for the
provision of services to the Group.

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers were less than 30% of the
Group’s total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised approximately
91% of the Group’s total purchases while the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 75% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder,
which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest
in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

During the year ended 31st March, 2011, 100,000 shares
and 120,000 shares were repurchased by the Company on
11th January, 2011 and 24th February, 2011, respectively,
at share prices ranging from HK$3.63 per share to HK$4.12
per share.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company'’s listed securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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During the year, the Group made donations totalling
HK$758,000.

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 9 to 24.

As at 31st March, 2011, the Group had a total of about 870
employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and employees of the Group, details
of the scheme are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
option scheme and directors’ rights to acquire shares or
debentures” above and in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the Group’s Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 16 to 20.
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Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the percentage of the Company’s shares in the
hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Ming Biu
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 15th June, 2011

RAKITEEBRLD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ORIENTAL WATCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 38 to 111, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2011,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

B RERTEERRAAZTRR
(RERZEAME L HRAA])

AZBEITE TR BERANEBAEES
TMAERSARTEEERAR(TERR])
FEMBRAR(RBRIEREDNKEA
BHREk HRBER-_ZT——%=A
T BENEAUBUIRE  AREEZ
FLEFEENGAZEKRER  KEEaE
PRMGEAREMERN T EZSFBRM
EMEMGAER -

BERRESARARBEE ST AEH
R FBMBHRE LA RFERBEN 2
RERTE  SEGAUBRE  USHES
MBEBRRIELBEEMAFHORKR - MEE
HR SRR A PR RR TS EAABE
B - PAGEAR A B RS R I B B KR SRR A
(T E B RFFEERSE) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

RAEKITEBEFRLDF Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as
at 31st March, 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

15th June, 2011

BFIRE  GAMBRREREBEETBMH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EE RS R

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

Turnover
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income

Exchange difference arising
on translation of foreign
operations

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets

Reclassification adjustment
upon sale of available-for-
sale financial assets

Other comprehensive income for
the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to owners

of the Company

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

CE S

EF

H A
IR E R
TTRFAX

BERA

IR =E N A

R 5% A1k A
PRSI R X

ENGE PN
P F

Hh 2 W an

BEBINEBESL

ZIERZER

At ESMEEL

AFEE

HEAHEESRE
EZEHDBHE

FARAEMBEEIE

ZAN/NIE 2 SN A ]
FAEE R B

RAEKITEBEFRLDF Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Notes

llogz3

N

11

11

2010
—E-FF

HK$’000

FET

3,849,172 3,242,643
(3,199,185) (2,748,804)
649,987 493,839
13,813 15,185
(126,759) (126,816)
(256,547) (221,981)
(9,546) (13,970)
1,241 —
272,189 146,257
(52,760) (33,710)
219,429 112,547
15,574 1,588
4,559 (806)
(249) (616)
19,884 166
239,313 112,713

52.55 HK cents &1l 30.42 HK cents 1l

51.06 HK cents &1l 30.42 HK cents /&l




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R &R
At 31st March, 2011
R=F——F=F=+—H

2010
—ET-TF
Notes HK$’000
HraF FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - e NERE 12 155,531 142,883
Deposits for acquisition U B2 - ES
of property, plant and R ziEe
equipment 10,575 —
Interests in associates iRl N] I - e 13 32,990 —
Available-for-sale financial At ELmMEE
assets 14 18,548 43,694
Property rental deposits MEETIZS 13,977 24,978
231,621 211,555
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 1,377,076 1,247,838
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A IR K 18 161,423 132,221
Taxation recoverable AR EIF7 I8 30 397
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR NS 16 600,824 224,881
2,139,353 1,605,337
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables B 5 M HEAEMERK 17 170,222 101,466
Taxation payable FET IR \ 34,702 12,921
Current-portion of secured BEFARBPIFETER
long-term bank loans <2 BVEAER (D 18 30,000 30,000
Short-term bank loans EHEIRITE K 18 211,375 186,862
446,299 331,249
Net current assets MEEEFE 1,693,054 1,274,088
Total assets less current liabilities &EEERTEE & 1,924,675 1,485,643
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Secured long-term bank loans BEARBRITERK 18 60,000 90,000
Net assets BESE 1,864,675 1,395,643
Capital and reserves B E
Share capital R AN 20 46,951 38,948
Reserves & 1,817,724 1,356,695
Total equity R BT 1,864,675 1,395,643

HNEIBEEF I A ZHFEMBRRE
ExenN T ATHA#LEREK
BT Xh MIESHERE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 111
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 15th June, 2011 and are signed on its behalf

by:
Yeung Ming Biu Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
BHE BT
CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR
FE EFpasE

—Z — — F F 3, Annual Report 2011



40

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

MREERSER

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

At 1t Apri, 2009 WIZENE

A-H

Exchange difference arising A 850 £4f
on tranglation of foreign EECER
operations 0

Change in far value of ARESHARY
avallablefor-sale finenciel ~~ AFEEH
assets

Reclassffication adjustment ~ HEA fHE
upon sale of avallable-for- ~ £REEZE
sale financial assets gk

Profit for the year Epiaf]

Total comprehensive income A2 EREEE
for the year

Issue of new shares upon TR ARERS
exercise of warrants )

Bonus issue of shares TR

Subscription right of warrants - RER 2 EHE
lapsed K
2000 final cividend paidin -~ ~EEAFEA

respect of shares issued  BtBEAN Kl
since the approval of VL {iPdra
the 2009 consolidated BRE-ITNE
financial statements RERE
2009 fingl dividend paid BRE-ETNE
RERE
2010 interim cividend paid ~ 2EX-3-ZF
hERE
2010 fingl dividend proposed K -E-F%
RERE
At 315t March, 2010 RZ5-%F
Zh=t-R

Share Capital ~ Subscription Asset
Share Share option  redemption right  revaluation Special  Translation Retained Dividend
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits reserve Total
B REEE BRERE S4ABRGE  JBERE HEEGRE 0 GHRR  BERE  REEN  ReRE ait
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$ 1000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK§'000 HK$ 1000 HK8'000 HK$'000
AT 7T FET 7T 7T 7T FET AT 7T 7T FET
32,32 208,938 1774 42 920 2,551 5,180 38,401 942,683 1,314 1,244 511
- - - - - - - 1,588 - - 1,588
- - - - - (806) - - - - (806)
- - - - - (616) - - - - (616)
- - - - - - - - 112,547 - 112,547
- - - - - (1422) - 1,588 112,547 - 12,713
3,300 53,250 - - (660) - - - - - 55,890
3,323 - - - - - - - (3323 - -
- - - - (260) - - - 260 - -
- - - - - - - - (315) - (315)
- - - - - - - - - (11314 (11,314)
_ - - = = - - - (6,842 - (5,842)
- - - - - - - - (15,579) 15,579 -
38,948 262,188 1774 42 - 1,129 5,180 30989 1,030,431 15579 1,395,643

RAKITEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Exchange difference arising
on translation of foreign
operations

Change in fair value of
avalable- for-sale financial
assets

Reclassffication adjustment
upon sale of available-for-
sale financial assets

Proft for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Issue of new shares upon
exercise of share options

Issue of new shares upon
placing

Repurchase of shares

Transaction costs attributable
toissue and repurchase of
shares

2010 final dividend paid

2011 interim dividend paid

2011 final dividend proposed

At 31st March, 2011

i
250 3]
£

THLELHER?
19628

g tHE
EREEL
EfNRHE

ERER

EnrEkESE

RRABERR
SHRD
REEBITHRG

BER(
ErREORAEE
LEGHE

BR¥-3-%4
#Eka

BR&-3-—-%
hERE

RE-5——&
#Eka

=

N—

=8=4-1

Share Capital Subscription Asset
Share Share option  redemption right  revaluation Special  Translation Retained Dividend
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits reserve Total
B REEE BRERE G4AHERE  JBERE HEEGRE  RIRR  BERE  REEN RSB At
HK$'000 HK$ 1000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$ 1000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 1000 HK$'000
AT 7T FAT FAT AT 7T T Yo/ AT 7T TET
- - - - - - - 15,574 - - 15,574
- - - - - 4559 - - - - 4,559
- - - - - (249) - - - - (249)
- - - - - - - - 219429 - 219429
- - - - - 4310 - 15,574 219429 - 239,313
3,02 46,254 (1774 - - - - - - - 47,506
5,000 214,000 - - - - - - - - 219,000
(22) (831) - - - - - - - - (853
- (6,262) - - - - - - - - (6,262)
- - - - - - - - - (15,579) (15,579)
- - - - - - - - (14,09 - (14,092
_ - - = = - - - (37,561) 37,561 =
46,951 515,349 - 4% - 5439 5,180 55,563 1,198,207 37,561 1,864,675

The special reserve of the Group comprises the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by
the Company and the nominal amount of the issued share
capital and special reserves of those companies which were
acquired by the Group pursuant to a group reorganisation
in 1993. The special reserves of these acquired subsidiaries
represent the credit arising on reduction of their paid up
share capital under the group reorganisation.

AEEZFHFERBEERARREHITRA
HEEAKERE-NN=FETEEE
AmMEEZ AREEITRAREZZRER
P U EE 2 )2 R Bl - PRUEB P B A )
ZRRFEEEREEREEA  BRZER
AIEAUR IRAMESL 2 #RK -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEBRERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE_FT——F=FA=+—HIFE

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Dividend income from available-for-

sale financial assets

Gain on disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets

Interest expense

Interest income

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Share of results of associates

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease (increase) in property rental
deposits

Increase in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade and other
receivables

Increase (decrease) in trade and other
payables

Cash from operations
Income taxes paid in Hong Kong
Other jurisdictions

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of available-
for-sale financial assets

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Dividend received from available-for-
sale financial assets

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Acquisition of associates

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Purchase of available-for-sale
financial assets

Net cash used in investing activities

RAERTHE

2010
—E—FF
HK$’000
FAETT
BR 75 Bl A 272,189 146,257
FELATHEE :
Y - R REE
e 23,812 26,120
f,ttﬂj% MEE
Z & %U\ (1) (2,000)
ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%@%ﬁéﬁ
Bz Wa (249) (616)
FEBRAX 9,546 13,970
FEWA (1,215) (429)
HEWZE  ERK
R EiE 956 194
JEAGEE S N R 2 5 4E (1,241) —
,’_| /\zif.@:)ﬁ ZZ«()\)\
iﬁi/}lbi 303,797 183,496
MEMR SRR A (3Em)
1,184 (8,182)
FEIE N (113,747) (33,492)
B 5 Kk E A EUER TR
(3% 0) (16,546) 13,661
B 5 Kk E A EIRK
A CR ) 67,134 (22,589)
KREERFIEE 2R ® 241,822 132,894
BA%.? B2 BRI (14,659) (7,305)
Hith ALE#E R (15,953) (6,931)
RERERRESE 2
R F58 211,210 118,658
TEEG
HEIMHTESREE
< T8 50E 33,152 7,086
B U F B 1,215 429
ﬁ%@% W23 N a5
Z P18k 82 —
AP ESREEY
2 WA B 1 2,000
BEYE - HBENEE
(34,692) (34,310)
I s & R 7 (31,281) —
i NG|
ZBfEe (10,575) —
BEHIEEHEE
(1,947) =
REXBEZIRE T (44,045) (24,795)

[E & PR 2 & Oriental Watch Holdings Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

2010
—ET-TF
HK$’000
FAET
Financing activities BE R E
Dividends paid ERIRE (29,671) (17,471)
Interest paid ERFLE (9,728) (12,972)
Proceeds from issuance of shares AT AR R 321 T
upon exercise of share options WA < PS5 IR 47,505 —
Proceeds from issuance of shares REEERZEITRG
upon placing Z PSR I8 219,000 —
Transaction costs attributable to Ao & RS TRR (D B
issuance of shares upon placing Z R B (6,259) —
Proceeds from issuance of shares AT RARAE B 31T
upon exercise of warrants WA < PS5 IR - 55,890
New bank loans raised ERITE R 581,875 1,151,018
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (594,688) (1,248,266)
Repurchase of shares EAEE e (856) —
Net cash from (used in) financing BEEBFTEE(FTFE) 2
activities H&F58 207,178 (71,801)
Net increase in cash and cash RekEFERBEEERZ
equivalents AT ER 374,343 22,062
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHzREeRER
beginning of year REER 224,881 202,618
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [& & &) 2 /2 1,600 201
Cash and cash equivalents at the FR7B/ERERBE®
end of year, represented by bank HE - AIRITERK
balances and cash RWeREK 600,824 224,881

—Z — — F F 3, Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and acts as
an investment holding company as well as engaged in
watch trading. The shares of the Company are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are detailed
in the corporate information section of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™).

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Group cash-settled
share-based payment
transactions

HKFRS 3 (as revised in Business combinations

2008)

HKAS 27 (as revised in Consolidated and separate

2008) financial statements
HKAS 32 (Amendments)  Classification of rights
issues

HKAS 39 (Amendments)  Eligible hedged items

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs

issued in 2009

RAKITEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR I

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Amendments to HKFRS 5
as part of improvements
to HKFRSs issued in
2008

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 17 Distributions of non-cash
assets to owners
Presentation of financial
statements: Classification
by the borrower of a
term loan that contains
a repayment on demand

clause

HK Interpretation 5

Except as described below, the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements for the current or
prior accounting periods.

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) “Business
combinations”

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) has been applied in the
current year prospectively to business combinations of
which the acquisition date is on or after 1st April, 2010
in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions.
Its application has affected the accounting for business
combinations in the current year.

° HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) allows a choice
on a transaction-by-transaction basis for the
measurement of non-controlling interests at the
date of acquisition (previously referred to as
‘minority’ interests) either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ share of recognised
identifiable net assets of the acquiree.

BRUBREER BRUMBREEAELR
(B31%) LB FR-EE
NEB2 BB
REER 2B~
i)
ER(ARVHRERE DR EETHAA
Z288)- REF17H
BRRESLNH BHERRLZR  BFA
%ﬁ@a?ﬁ%xzﬁﬂ%
RLBHERZ B

B T X P E SN - EAFE] RAEERT
BEMBREENL EH A S
Eﬁ?iﬁ&@ﬁﬁﬁ B 2 #7 & B TS SRR IE K
BEARE

EEMBHRELEAEIR(ZFTEN
FREBIIEBEH]

FEEMBHREEMNEIR(ZFZEN

FRETERAFERBEEBBE
fERSCPAR SR R A FE A Wi B B s
—E-TENA-HAZRZEBE
Bt - HEAEREAFEEB AL
St ©

o EBEUBRELANEIR(-T
TN\ELEE) DT REREE
RHER LR FEIAFER
s (RITEI L BB J#E25) D1
W AR Y B HR SRS E
SE(E RIS B A JEiE

>X o
T
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HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) “Business
combinations” (Continued)

HKFRS 83 (as revised in 2008) changes the
recognition and subsequent accounting
requirements for contingent consideration.
Previously contingent consideration was
recognised at the acquisition date only if payment
of the contingent consideration was probable and
it could be measured reliably; any subsequent
adjustments to the contingent consideration were
always made against the cost of the acquisition.
Under the revised standard, contingent
consideration is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date; subsequent adjustments to the
consideration are recognised against the cost of
acquisition only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset
or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires the
recognition of a settlement gain or loss when
the business combination in effect settles a pre-
existing relationship between the Group and the
acquiree.

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires acquisition-
related costs to be accounted for separately from
the business combination, generally leading to
those costs being recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred, whereas previously they
were accounted for as part of the cost of the
acquisition.

RAEKITEBEFRLDF Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR I

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) “Business
combinations” (Continued)

As there was no transaction during the current year to
which HKFRS 3 (Revised) is applicable, the application
of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) has had no effect on
the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 17 “Leases”

As part of “Improvements to HKFRSs” issued in 2009,
HKAS 17 “Leases” has been amended in relation
to the classification of leasehold land. Before the
amendments to HKAS 17, the Group was required
to classify leasehold land as operating leases and to
present leasehold land as prepaid lease payments
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The amendments to HKAS 17 have removed such
a requirement. The amendments require that the
classification of leasehold land should be based on the
general principles set out in HKAS 17, that is, whether
or not substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of a leased asset have been transferred
to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in
the amendments to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed
the classification of unexpired leasehold land as at
1st April, 2010 based on information that existed at
the inception of the leases. As at 1st April, 2010, the
Group’s owner-occupied leasehold land has been
included in the property, plant and equipment as the
lease payments would not be allocated reliably between
the land and building element. Accordingly, the
application of the amendments to HKAS 17 has had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of
financial statements: Classification by the
borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment
on demand clause”

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of financial
statements: Classification by the borrower of a term
loan that contains a repayment on demand clause”
(“HK INT 5”) clarifies that term loans that include a
clause that gives the lender the unconditional right
to call the loans at any time (“repayment on demand
clause”) should be classified by the borrower as current
liabilities. The Group has applied HK INT 5 for the first
time in the current year. Hong Kong Interpretation 5
requires retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in
HK INT 5, the Group has changed its accounting
policy on classification of term loans with a repayment
on demand clause. In the past, the classification
of such term loans were determined based on the
agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. Under HK INT 5, term loans with a
repayment on demand clause are classified as current
liabilities.

The application of HK INT 5 has had no impact on
the reported financial position of the Group as at 31st
March, 2010 and 2011, as the bank loans of the Group
that are repayable more than one year after the end
of the reporting period do not contain a repayment on
demand clause.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

New and revised standards and interpretations
issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010'

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosures: Transfers of
financial assets’

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKAS 12 (Amendments)  Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets®

HKAS 24 (as revised in Related party disclosures®

2009)
HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum
(Amendments) funding requirement®
HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity
instruments®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2010 or 1st January, 2011, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2010.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2013.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as issued in
November 2009) introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as revised
in November 2010) adds requirements for financial
liabilities and for derecognition.
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New and revised standards and interpretations
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant
change relates to financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the presentation of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR I

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

New and revised standards and interpretations
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st January, 2013, with earlier application
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS
9 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for financial year ending 31st March, 2014.
The directors are in the process of assessing the
impact on application of HKFRS 9 and the directors
anticipate that these amendments to HKFRS 9 will
have an impact on classification and measurement of
the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets but not
on financial liabilities.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised Standards,
Amendments or Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from their effective
dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR I

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Interests in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interests in associates are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associates. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of an associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Interests in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell) with its carrying amount, Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’ consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Watch repair service income is recognised when
services are provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR I

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Show window rental income is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant rental.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
where the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, in which case,
the entire lease is classified as a finance lease.

The cost of leasehold land and buildings is depreciated
using the straight line method over the shorter of the
period of the lease or over their estimated useful lives
of 30 years for those located in Mainland China (the
“PRC”) or 50 years for those located in Hong Kong.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other
items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the reducing balance
method, at the rate of 20% per annum.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR I

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight line basis.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency, i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates, at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (the translation reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rate that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories, which are finished goods held for sale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated on a specific identification basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one
of two categories, including loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the credit period granted, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade or other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including trade and other

payables and bank loans are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes, including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and the employee’s pension scheme of the respective
municipal government in various places in the PRC
where the Group operates, are charged as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is recognised as an expense in full at
the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in the share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
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The Group’s operation is principally sales of watches.
The Group’s turnover represents consideration received
and receivable from sales of watches.

The Group has two operating segments, which are
analysed based on geographical markets of the goods
sold, being (a) Hong Kong, and (b) Macau and the
PRC, which is also the basis of organisation of the
Group for managing the business operations. The
Group determines its operating segments based on
the internal reports reviewed by the Managing Director
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7B e

of the Group that are used to allocate resources and
assess performance.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment

okk

AT RASBEIREED &0 208

revenue and results by operating segments. W R EE D

Segment revenue

Segment profit

7 U = 2 &85 F
2010 2010
—ET-FTF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong &5 2,638,096 2,233,812 216,883 135,786
Macau and the RP KA
PRC 1,211,076 1,008,831 100,936 51,398
3,849,172 3,242,643 317,819 187,184
Unallocated other Ko B E g A
income 4,019 3,128
Unallocated ROBAFRIFAX
corporate
expenses (41,344) (30,085)
Finance costs =YD PN (9,546) (13,970)
Share of results of [E{GEEE AT 2
associates E 1,241 —
Profit before BR A B & A
taxation 272,189 146,257
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

The accounting policies used to determine segment
revenue and results are the same as the accounting
policies adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements described in note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of directors’ salaries, finance costs, share of
results of associates and unallocated other income and
expenses. Unallocated expenses included auditor’s
remunerations, directors’ emoluments and operating
expenses of inactive companies. This is the measure
reported to the Managing Director of the Group for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

The Group has no customer who contributed over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group for any of the two
years ended 31st March, 2011.

All segment revenue is generated from external
customers for both years.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating segments.
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Segment assets

Segment liabilities

7 U E= pal il

2010 2010

—E-ZF —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong B 1,056,922 954,529 132,314 83,729
Macau and the SBP K A

PRC 660,839 590,995 37,435 17,248

Segment total 7 EBARET 1,717,761 1,545,524 169,749 100,977

Unallocated KoL 653,213 271,368 336,550 320,272

Group’s total REB BT 2,370,974 1,816,892 506,299 421,249
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75 5 2% MY =

ended 31st March, 2011

BE—F——F-f=f—HIFE

The segment assets by location of assets are the same
as by location of markets of the goods sold.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, available-for-
sale financial assets and taxation recoverable as
well as other receivables and bank balances and
cash of the headquarters; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable and bank loans as
well as other payables of the headquarters. Bank
loans are classified as unallocated corporate
liabilities because they are managed centrally by
the treasury function of the Group.

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment results or
segment assets:

PR 8l D 2 o B0 A B BRIR
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Loss on disposal (Decrease)
Additions of property, of property, increase in non-current
plant and equipment Depreciation plant and equipment property rental deposits
HENE  #ER FranEnsne
RENE  BERRG ik REZER (B4) %M
2010 2010 2010 2010
“3-%% “%-% _2-% “3-%%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT
Hong Kong &b 13,089 11,126 8,314 7,59 766 194 (11,197) 7,232
Macau and the PRC 25 ik 22,890 23,278 15,423 18,430 190 - 196 950
Segment total R 35,979 34,404 23,731 26,026 956 194 (11,001) 8,182
Unallocated AR - - 75 9 - ~ - -
Group’s total RSB 35,979 34,404 23,812 26,120 956 194 (11,001) 8,182

—Z — — F F 3, Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
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Other segment information (Continued) HihpEHER(EZ)

Information about the Group’s non-current assets REEMMEMEI D 2 AEBIERHE
(excluding available-for-sale financial assets, property ETEEAIHEES/REE ME
rental deposits and interests in associates) by Hekae hBE 2D ) 2ER
geographical location of the assets are detailed below: ST

Carrying amount
of non-current assets

FRBEEZREE

2010

—T-TF

HK$’000

FET

Hong Kong BE 115,930 101,503

Macau and the PRC JRPY K R 50,176 41,380

166,106 142,883

2010

—T-FTF

HK$’000

FET

Interest income A B A 1,215 429

Dividend income from available- AHHEEREE L

for-sale financial assets iz B A 1 2,000
Gain on disposal of available-for- HERHEHESRMEE

sale financial assets 2 e 249 616

Exchange gain P 5 e 2,554 77

Repairing service income HEME RIS WA 5,970 6,018

Show window rental income BEES WA 2,655 5,105

Others HAth 1,169 940

13,813 15,185
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Interest on bank borrowings
wholly repayable within five
years

Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 8)

Other staff’s retirement benefits
scheme contributions

Other staff costs

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Operating lease rentals in respect
of rented premises

SRR RS

BB Al et A E HIRR

Ex=Me (AeE8)
HR 8 2R AREF
ATEIfEER

H b 8 AR

ZER &

M - W RRE
ZHE

HEME - #az

BT k=
ERHEME Y K&
HEME

2010

—E—FF

HK$’000

FET

9,546 13,970
2010

—E-FF

HK$’000

FET

38,659 27,764
4,094 3,940
106,869 92,166
149,622 123,870
2,540 2,180
23,812 26,120
956 194
131,226 115,564
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 ENKENIZ(ZE—FF :9%)
(2010: 9) directors were as follows: EERAZHMET
2010
—F-%f

Retirement  Performance-

Salaries benefits related
and other scheme incentive

Fees benefits  contributions bonus Total
®eh  BOBA  FEE

e BN FERR #BEC &3t

HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET T T

(note)
(i)
Bxecutive directors ~ #{7#%
Mr. YeungMing Bu  BEERAE - 3,293 450 5,850 9,593 - 3,293 450 1,876 5,619
Mr. YeungHimKit,  Bfil%s
Dennis - 3,359 330 4,388 8,017 - 3,359 330 1,876 5,565
Mr. FungKwong Yiu — BERBLE - 3,078 324 2,926 6,328 - 3,079 324 1,876 5279
Madam Yeung Man ~ BEEL L
Yee, Shirley - 684 79 2,926 3,689 - 650 75 1,875 2,600
Mr.LamHing Lun,  HEEES
Alain - 2,074 186 2,926 5,186 = 2,022 180 1,875 4017
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum  ZEIfizt - 2,068 252 2,926 5,246 - 1,965 243 1,876 4,084
Independent non- BUINTES
executive directors
Dr.SunPingHsu,  ZXEBL
Samson 180 - - - 180 180 = = = 180
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy  Z%[EE L 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
Mr. Choi Man Chau, ~ ZJ0H% 4
Michael 180 - - - 180 180 = = = 180
540 14,556 1,621 21,942 38,659 540 14,368 1,602 11,254 21,764
Note: The performance-related incentive bonus is determined as a Brat - RIBERENVIEAL VIR MBRIEAAIEA
percentage of the profit for the year before bonus charge. w2 E—B DL MERE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR I

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

All the five highest paid employees of the Group were rEBRUSRTMEESH AL AT
executive directors of the Company. Details of their HITEE - FEZMEFBHEN L
emoluments are disclosed above. X o

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FA - AEEYEMAM RS HE
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including B(BREEEFREER)XNEMME
directors and employees) as an inducement to join EAMAREE S INAKREERE 2 5
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for Bk BEBE (8 - FRABMEEEHREMT
loss of office. None of the directors has waived any A& -

emoluments during the year.

2010
—E-FF
HK$’000
T
The charge (credit) comprises: T E)BE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBEMER 29,245 19,310
(Over)underprovision in prior years &1 E (FBEEEE ) BE
T~ (1,498) 467
27,747 19,777
Taxation in other jurisdictions Hib AR 2 HIE 25,021 13,463
(Over)underprovision in prior years @7 E (FBEEEE ) B
2 (8) 655
25,013 14,118
Deferred taxation (note 19) B IB (KL 19) - (185)
52,760 33,710
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BAENESHDBREMEFE 2 e E
estimated assessable profits for both years. RFLE A 16.56% 5T & -
Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates B e AR 2 RIB TR EE EEH
prevailing pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations. FOERIBIRITHEGE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011

HE2—

F——F=f=1+—HIFE

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
from 1st January, 2008 onwards. Certain subsidiaries
that enjoyed a preferential tax rate prior to 1st January,
2008 will be gradually transitioned to the new tax rate
over five years from 1st January, 2008. Therefore, the
Enterprise Income Tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries was
increased from 22% in the calendar year of 2010 to
24% in the calendar year of 2011 (2010: from 20% in
the calendar year of 2009 to 22% in the calendar year
of 2010).

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the

profit per the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

Profit before taxation BR A5 Al g )

Tax at the applicable income tax

rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) —ZE—FF :16.5%)
FTE 2 IE
Tax effect of share of profits of FEAG S & N B )
associates LR E
Tax effect of expenses not AP RS 2 BT =

deductible for tax purposes
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes
Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised -
Effect of different tax rates of

BERMMBAZHHE R

subsidiaries operating in other MtE A RIFTE AT
jurisdictions MEZE

(Over)underprovision in WAEFE (BREEE)
prior years BETR

Others Hh,

Tax charge for the year REFMIE H

RAEKITEBEFRLDF Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

RIBCP BB REN B EME
TR D) R EFRBBIRBERIEG)) -
FENB AR CHEE _TENF—
A—B#A2% R_ZETENF—
A—BRAEZXEEMRE 2 ETHER
AFBE_EENF-—A—BRAFA
BAREZIHHE o lut EPIMT%
REZEMSHER T —TEF
22%itu§ffffgiz4%<:?
—ZF AT NFEF20% N
ET-ZTEF2%) °

AEERIAX A BB EES ZEK
mR B AERRAT

RIBEREHE16.5%

REERWE BB 2 RS

REMRLEEREE 2

2010

—E-ZTF

HK$’000

FET

272,189 146,257
44,911 24,132
(205) —
2,639 4,549
(764) (997)
2,048 1,360
5,110 3,117
(1,506) 1,122
527 427
52,760 33,710




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Dividend recognised as
distribution during the year:
Interim dividend for financial

year ended 31st March, 2011
of 3.0 HK cents (financial
year ended 31st March,
2010: 1.5 HK cents) per
share on 469,728,520 (2010:
389,478,520) shares

Final dividend for financial year
ended 31st March, 2010 of
4.0 HK cents (financial year
ended 31st March, 2009:
3.5 HK cents) per share
on 389,478,520 (2009:
332,253,200) shares

Dividend proposed after year end:

Proposed final dividend for
financial year ended 31st
March, 2011 of 8.0 HK cents
(financial year ended 31st
March, 2010: 4.0 HK cents)
per share on 469,508,520
(2010: 389,478,520) shares

FREEREDIR L
BE 8.
12 469,728,520 fi%

(ZF—FF:
389,478,520 %) 2
HE—Z——%F=H
=t+—HIEMEREE
F ARG 8 &A% 3.0 781U
(B2 —%Z%F
=A=+—H1t
FIREE : 1.5781(0L)

12389,478,520 fi%

—ETAF
332,253,200 %) 2
HE_ZT—ZTF=H
=t+—HUIEMEREE
REARE B S A% 4.0 1L
(BE—ZZhE
=A=+—H81t
PEEE : 3.5%810)

HERRER 2R
1% 469,508,520 &

E—T4F
389,478,520 /%) 2
HE-_ZT——%F=H
= t+t—HLEMEBRFE
¥R R 2R B
=A% 8.0 711l
(B2 —2F
=A=+—H1

BTERE : 4.0840)

A final dividend of 8.0 HK cents (2010: 4.0 HK cents)
per share has been proposed by the directors and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

2010

—E—FF

HK$'000

FET

14,092 5,842

15,579 11,629

29,671 17,471

37,561 15,579
EECDERIRE R i%8ma

W ZE—ZF : 4.081) BF
R EEREBF RS &R - H

AHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

Earnings 27

Earnings for the purposes of basic st & AR E AN [ #58 & 7|
ZEBF(ERRHE A

and diluted earnings per share
(Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company)

FEIEANF R A)

g 4=

Number of shares

AAEEBRELRRNZ
EBINAE 9

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary E%ﬁ TR
shares — share options B — Bk

AAEEBREERN
BB INAE 19

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted earnings per share

During the year ended 31st March, 2011, all the
granted share options under the Share Option Scheme
were exercised.

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31st March, 2010 has not included the effect from the
Company’s share options because the exercise prices
of these share options were higher than the average
market price of share of the Company in prior year.

RAEKITEBEFRLDF Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

ADREE A EREA RS A
FITYIR A T BB -

2010
—E—T
HK$'000
TETT

219,429 112,547

2010
—E—FF
'000

FHE

417,597 369,955

12,155 =

429,752 369,955

WRE-F——FZA=+—ALLE
R - A R IR BIE 2
B E AT -

HRARBBEREZTEESRAR
AR EFZFEHE  HEE-F
*?E_H_WL*EIJJ:¢F“2#JM§E
BRANYEBEZERREITE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

COST D%

At 1st April, 2009 RZZTNEF
MA—H

Exchange adjustment  [& X 3%

Additions NE

Disposals HE

At 31st March, 2010 R-Z—T4F
=R=+—H

Exchange adjustment  [& i, ;5%

Additions NG

Disposals &

At 31st March, 2011  R-Z——4
=A=+—H

DEPRECIATION e

At 1st April, 2009 RZZTNEF
mA—H

Exchange adjustment  [& i 58 %

Provided for the year A E &

Eliminated on 6 B A 8

disposals

At 31st March, 2010 RZZ—F
—A=1—H

Exchange adjustment & i ;5%

Provided for the year N /&

Eliminated on & R 8E

disposals

At 31st March, 2011  R-Z——4
=ZA=+—H

CARRYING VALUES [RHEE

At 31st March, 2011  R=-Z——4
=A=+—H

At 31st March, 2010 RAZZ—ZF
=A=+—H

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and and Motor
buildings equipment vehicles Total
B ®E
TREF & nE At
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F/ET FET FBT FET
98,145 118,264 2,969 219,378
118 172 — 290
— 33,877 527 34,404
— (4,494) — (4,494)
98,263 147,819 3,496 249,578
942 2,145 — 3,087
2,548 32,417 1,014 35,979
— (27,661) 912) (28,573)
101,753 154,720 3,598 260,071
12,447 70,357 1,954 84,758
12 105 — 117
1,800 24,098 222 26,120
— (4,300) — (4,300)
14,259 90,260 2,176 106,695
145 1,423 — 1,568
1,865 21,607 340 23,812
— (26,623) 912) (27,535)
16,269 86,667 1,604 104,540
85,484 68,053 1,994 155,531
84,004 57,559 1,320 142,883
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property, AREFTERMEE Lz LI &
plant and equipment because the allocation between BFIXMHTESHED  MEEH
the land portion and building portion cannot be made FAEELH G AYE #BEK
reliably. e
2010
—E-TF
HK$’000
TFET
The carrying value of property VIERRZEEESE

interests comprises:

Properties held under ETYEOFE 2 YE
Long leases in Hong Kong REB 2 KREED 65,927 64,038
Medium-term leases in the PRC KA Bl 2 F HATH %Y 19,557 19,966
85,484 84,004
2010
—ET-TF
HK$’000
FET

Cost of investments in unlisted RIEEMEEE AT

associates LB 31,281 —
Exchange adjustments ME H A 468 —
Share of post-acquisition profits ~ FE(EULAE & 2 3% A 1,241 —
32,990 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

On 3rd November, 2010, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into an agreement with an
independent third party for the acquisition of 40%
equity interests in two companies, namely K FT§E kA%
HBAERAR and @=FEERMD AR AT, (the “Acquired
Companies”) at a consideration of HK$20,687,000. The
Target Companies are incorporated in Taiwan. They
hold one retail shop and principally engage in watch
trading in Taiwan. Upon completion of the acquisition,
the Acquired Companies will become associates of
the Company, and the Company can assign 2 out of 5
directors in the Acquired Companies.

Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill
of HK$15,341,000 arising on acquisition of associates
during the year.

In the late 2010 and early 2011, two more companies,
namely NFTEHRDBR AT and NEEKRE ZKRM
BRATR], were newly established by the same group
of investing parties. The Company held 40% equity
interest on these companies, contributing an additional
investment cost of HK$10,594,000.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31st March, 2011
are as follows:

Place of Proportion
incorporation of ownership
Name of associate and operation interest
ot A L FrEtE
BENRER REEMHE Rz f
NEERRD BR A A Taiwan 40%
G
HEBRE RN BB AR Taiwan 40%
Al
KITEERRN AR AT Taiwan 40%
=Y
mATEEIR D AR A A Taiwan 40%
AN =
=/=

RZZTE—ZEF+—H=H " ARQAIZ
E- RN =NS F AL NCTR i
EEBROERAR RS HEERRD
BERARTEWE QAL Z40%%
BEBIE =" HhzE RER
20,687,000/87T - BIZRRTIREE
AR BE—HEEEREEE
BEREHEER - RIBTHKE -
EREARBKNAASE 2B ER
A MARRAEREWEARSH
BExzHP2% -

AAAFETRERAZEHE
15,341,000 8 702k B F AU B EE =
A e

N

RZFE—ZEFREZF—F9 ' &
BRZHERSEEFKILIZME QA
NFERR D BR AR R EBER
EoBRMERAA - KRARIRZE
NAEFFEAA0% R HE - HIRIZE KA
10,594,000/8 T °

ARRBERAR-E——F=A

=+—BZEENT :

Proportion

of voting

power held
KA
RERELS FEXK

Principal activities

40%  Watch trading

F R

40%  Watch trading
TR

40%  Watch trading
FREH

40%  Watch trading
FREH

— & — — F F 3, Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

Summarised financial information in respect of the BAAEE  HERNRMBERBEE

Group’s associates are set out below:

ol

2010
—ET-TF
HK$’000
FET
Total assets BERE 96,174 —
Total liabilities BERE (52,052) —
Net assets BEFE 44,122 —
Group’s share of associates’ net  ANEBEEBE AT 2
assets BEFE 17,649 —
Revenue Wz 102,249 —
Profit for the year F N A 3,104 —
Group’s share of profits of REEEGEE AR
associates for the year F A5 K 1,241 —
2010
—T-FTF
HK$’000
FAET
Listed investments EmiRE
Equity securities listed in Hong BB LT RAFES
Kong (note (a)) (K1t (a) 136 167
Unlisted investments FELETIRE
Managed fund portfolio EEASKERSE
(note (b)) (K13t (b)) 10,233 4,062
Equity securities (note (c)) RAZESH (Kt () 8,179 39,465
18,548 43,694
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR I

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
g —FZH=F-HLEE

Bz

=%

During the year, the Group disposed of certain
unlisted investments with a carrying value of
HK$366,000 (2010: HK$3,086,000) resulting in a gain
of HK$249,000 (2010: HK$616,000) which had been
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Notes:

(a)

At the end of the reporting period, all the equity securities
listed in Hong Kong are stated at fair values, which have been
determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.

The managed fund portfolio is managed by professional
investment manager and this portfolio mainly comprises
investment properties. The fund is stated at fair value provided
by the relevant investment manager with reference to the net
assets value of the investment portfolio as at 31st March,
2011.

The above unlisted investments in equity securities relate
to investments in two entities (2010: three entities). They
are measured at cost less impairment loss at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably. No impairment is considered necessary for both years.
During the year, the Group withdrew its capital investment
in an entity whose principal activity is to act as a private
investment fund with a carrying value of HK$31,286,000. No
gain or loss had been resulted.

RAFEE  AEBEHESETIHELTE
% - BRI E A366,0008 T (=F —
T4 : 3,086,000 7T ) © ML ES
249,000 L(ZF—Z 4 : 616,000

BT R3S - WERAFE 2 Rl
R -

(@) REJBK - FEEBLTRABSY
BATEAR  MATEN2RERD
BT EABMER -

() EERESREEAGTTAFEXRELELE
TER MZREEEIERERED
¥ EeNREBREAKEL2ERE
HEN_T——F=RA=+—RHZEE
FE - FREZAFEARK -

(©) LRIFLTERARFKETIHBNMIE
BR(CT—TF —AER)ZKRE -
HRARRESERR/IFLTRAZFK
BEzaBRATEGHZEBEAN Me
RVPEEEAEGE  WARKREDR
2WMRIBRARBEREEFTE - AR
AEERAMEFEHBAELRE -
FR-AFERHER-—EEBZEXR
BE BRZIEZXBREREEER
31,286,000 B TLZIMAREES - W H#
BHHRWRRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

2010
—E-FF
HK$’000
TET
Trade receivables B 5 RWAR K 127,581 93,523
Balance of consideration R HETHEE
receivable from sale of available- &REEREZ
for-sale financial assets BRI - 1,500
Property rental and utilities Y E ) YN i
deposits e 26,387 16,570
Advances to apparel suppliers M AR R B R 2,098 1,272
Advances to other suppliers r) L Ath £ FE P B 5K 688 336
VAT receivables JE B E 1,110 16,591
Other receivables o 4th E W BR 3X 3,559 2,429
161,423 132,221
The Group maintains a general credit policy of not NEEBHEHRBHEZEREITAHEEI0
more than 30 days for its wholesales customers. Sales HZ —REEHEK ZTEHEETEN
made to retail customers are made on a cash basis. HEET - U T AZBSEWELRNRE
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables REARIRBHEHH VR DM -
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:
2010
—E-FF
HK$’000
TET
Age AR i
0 to 30 days 02 30H 120,152 88,354
31 to 60 days 312 60H 6,745 3,863
61 to 90 days 61290 H 115 1,187
Over 90 days 90 H M E 569 119
127,581 93,523
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR I

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

More than 94% (2010: 94%) of the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired are recovered
within one month after the end of the reporting period.
No provision has been made for trade receivables as at
31st March, 2011 (2010: nil).

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$7,429,000 (2010: HK$5,169,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these receivables is 35 days (2010: 38 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days 90 H M

The Group will provide fully for any receivables over
365 days because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 365 days are
generally not recoverable.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers.

R E R RRE 2 E S ERER T
B9A% (ZZE—TF : 94% )R 2
Ke—EARKE - R_F——F =
A=+—H8  WERE S ERERRIE
HEBE(ZE—ZF : &) -

AEEZEZRBEREHBERA
#{E7,429,0008 T(ZE —F F :
5,169,000 %70 ) < FEMBR X - %5 &
WEEFRREFRBEBBPERER X
EREEIERE - AEEBEWEZ
ZEHRPFEEMERRD - ZZREKEE
RZFEHREAEIBB(ZE—TF
38H) e

EEMEREZE S ERRRZ &
R

2010

—E-FF

HK$’000

FET

6,745 3,863
115 1,187
569 119
7,429 5,169

7 S5 8 4 39 (160 2630 365 B 2 8
YRR 2 B - RABEESR
BT IR IB 365 B 2 MR R —
AW -

AEBYESAEERBRETENR -

FEERRIBRZAXSEFRE
E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less at fixed interest rate
ranging from 0.01% to 1.00% (2010: 0.01%) per

annum.

Trade payables

Payroll and welfare payables
Commission payables
Advances from customers
Renovation work payables
VAT payables

Interest payables

Property rental payables
Other payables

B 5 AR
& T& MA@
IAREliE

B IERR

JEAS BT TAZBR K

FEfTHEER
ANE)S)

IAREYE kA
H & AR K

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

Age

0 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
Over 90 days

ARk

0Z60H
61290 H
90 A L

86 R A &ITEBEABR D T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

SBRITEHREBEBEAEBMFES
FIREIEH A =18 A A TIWIZEFE
FRENTF0.01%E1.00%(=—F—
TF : 0.01%)FT B2 EHARITIF ©

2010

—ET-TF

HK$’000

FET

99,633 61,294
27,236 14,807
9,090 7,433
6,943 4,559
2,907 1,620
4,038 1,923
905 1,088
10,177 128
9,293 8,614
170,222 101,466

AT RE S RMNERRN 2 mBARIRE
ZEMZY 2 Rl

2010
—E-FF
HK$’000
FET

98,539 58,795
- 1,883
1,094 616

99,633 61,294




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Secured long-term bank loans
Short-term bank loans

Analysed as:
Secured
Unsecured

The bank loans are repayable as
follows:

Within one year

More than one year but not
exceeding two years

More than two years but not
exceeding five years

Less: Amount due for settlement
within one year (shown under
current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement after one
year

BEMRBRITER
REHIRTTE X

v I
BEA
EHE

WITERARAT
HIMER -

miE St

—FNRN
—FIREMFR

MEEBBEBRFEARN

B R FREH

BEZ IR

GImRBEE)

—FREWEE
Z R

2010

—E—FF

HK$’000

FET

90,000 120,000
211,375 186,862
301,375 306,862
90,000 120,000
211,375 186,862
301,375 306,862
241,375 216,862
30,000 30,000
30,000 60,000
301,375 306,862
(241,375) (216,862)
60,000 90,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011

HE2—

F——F=f=1+—HIFE

At 31st March, 2011, the Group has pledged certain
leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$41,032,000 (2010: HK$41,475,000) to
a bank to secure the bank loan facilities granted to
the Group. The secured long-term bank loans carry
interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
plus 1.65% per annum (2010: HIBOR plus 1.65% per
annum) with effective interest rate of 1.98% (2010:
1.76%) per annum.

At 31st March, 2011, short-term bank loans of
HK$211,375,000 (2010: HK$183,862,000) are
unsecured and carry interest at benchmark loan rates
of financial institutions set by the PRC ranging from
4.86% to 8.12% per annum (2010: 4.86% to 4.93%
per annum).

At 31st March, 2010, short-term bank loans of
HK$3,000,000 were unsecured and carried interest at
HIBOR plus 1.10% per annum with effective interest
rates ranging from 1.78% to 2.22% per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the
following undrawn short-term borrowing facilities:

Floating rate N
Expiring within one year R—F A EH
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R-_EBE——F=A=+—H £K&EEH
B Rk T R ARRRE B 4 41,032,000
BRLZAETHELIHEEF(ZE—
T 41,475,000/87T) © LAEAR
Elﬁﬁﬁh%mﬂéZﬁﬁ B
BREBRTEREBBRITEER
%U%%ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁm¢ﬂ+
1.65% (ZF—FTF : HFEBWITAZE

2N F F &1, 65%>E+E C BRF
FEH1.98%(ZF—ZF : 1.76%) °

R-ZZE——F=A=+—H ' ZHF
TE 211,375,000 T (ZE—F
£ :183,862,000/%8 7T ) & E K R I
HHPEGIF] 2 M BHE c EREE
FHMENT486%%E8.12% (=T —
TE  FFERA86%ZFE4.93%):TE -

R-_E—ZTF=A=+—8 ' 2HiE
ﬁiéf,#xsoooooo,%x%ﬂmﬁﬂm;z
EBBRITRAERENFF E1.10%
qu,%u EBRFENEN F1.78% =
2.22% °

‘\iiﬁﬁ)ﬁi $$IELAT§HEHXE

2010
—E—FF
HK$’000
FETT

818,192 840,603
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior years:

NTAREERAEFERNEERZ
ZREFIARENLEED -

Accelerated

tax

depreciation

IEBEITE

HK$’000

FET

At 1st April, 2009 R-ZETAFMA—H (185)
Credited to profit or loss (note 9) ST AB= (A7) 185
At 31st March, 2010 and 2011 N_E—FEER_FE——F=HF=+—H —

At 31st March, 2011, the Group had unutilised tax
losses of HK$23,764,000 (2010: HK$11,349,000)
available to set off against future assessable profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit stream. Included in unutilised tax losses
at 31st March, 2011 are losses of approximately
HK$22,865,000 (2010: HK$10,312,000) that will expire
in the period from 2013 to 2015. Other losses of the
Group at 31st March, 2010 and 2011 may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Under the new law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$102,829,000 (2010: HK$38,766,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

W_E——F=ZA=+—H  K&EH
B K B) A T 7% B3 48 23,764,000 78
TT(ZZT—F4F : 11,349,000 L) d]
MR R ERBOEF - AR KREETR
AR HE TR - i B X E R T
BAREEERRECHREEE - K=
E——F=-A=1+—HZABHAMRB
EEBAEENR _E—=FF"F—*H
FH FaﬂﬁiﬁﬁZJééﬂ?a #722,865,000 /&
TL(ZZE—=F : 10,312,000 T) °
AEBR_ZT—ZTFR_FT——F=
A=+ —HZzHMEENERBE
L o

BREFREFRE BT N\F—A
—HR PENBARFEIKARMAT
BREUE A 2 R SRS TEAT - AR
ANES B P I B Bl R R B A R RET
i ) 1 BT By 2= %5 102,829,000 78 7T
(ZZ—=4F : 38,766,000 8 7T) Z B
M AREREENE ISR R
REE - MW EANGREYBRRAE
=SB IRIER T8 2 B -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

Number
of shares Amount
B8R EE
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each ~ &AXEI{E0.108 7T
2 B
Authorised: ETE
At 1st April, 2009 RZZEZNFNA—H 500,000,000 50,000
Increase on 26th August, 2009 RZTTNF
(note (a)) JARZ+7xB#Em
(K13t (a) 500,000,000 50,000
At 31st March, 2010 and 2011 R-ZE—FFK
—T——F
=HA=+—8H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREE
At 1st April 2009 RZZEZENFNA—H 323,253,200 32,325
Issue of shares upon exercise of AT RIRREE RS
warrants (note (b)) BT (HfEE (b)) 33,000,000 3,300
Bonus issue of shares (note (a)) IEELRR (K732 (a) 33,225,320 3,323
At 31st March, 2010 N_TE—FF
=HA=+—8H 389,478,520 38,948
Issue of shares upon exercise of AT ERERRER
share options (note (c)) B (i () 30,250,000 3,025
Issue of shares upon placement FABD & # AR 1 B
of new shares (note (d)) B0 (K3 () 50,000,000 5,000
Repurchase of shares (note (e)) BRI (At (e) (220,000) (22)
At 31st March, 2011 RZT——%F
=HA=+—8H 469,508,520 46,951
Notes: iz -

(@)

By an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 26th August, 2009, authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$50,000,000
to HK$100,000,000 by the creation of 500,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each.

By another ordinary resolution passed at the same annual
general meeting, the issued share capital was increased
by way of a bonus issue by charging HK$3,323,000 to the
retained profits account in payment in full at par of 33,225,320
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each on the basis of one new
ordinary share for every ten ordinary shares held on 26th
August, 2009.

RAEKRITEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

(@)

EARAR_ZEZTAFNAZTH
BOZRREFTAS LRBZLEER
BR OARAZAETERAEBILE
500,000,000 f% & % T E0.107% Tt 2
T A% - 50,000,000 T g N =
100,000,000 7T

ERRA—BRRAEFASLBBZS—
BEBRZR BREIRANRZEAL
BAHRALM ARAEERSE EFEN
% 3,323,000 JT A I H (B 82 B B R
—ETAFNAZFT A ABSEETRYE
BRER - BFTERZEREY
33,225,320 R EE0.10 B L 2 Ll
A% o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
E_F——F=A=t—HLFE

=1

/= —=

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

During the year ended 31st March, 2010 and prior to the
bonus issue of shares set out in (a) above, 9,000,000 warrants
were issued at a subscription price of HK$1.81 per share,
resulting in the issue of 9,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each in the Company.

Subsequent to the bonus issue of shares set out in (a) above,
24,000,000 warrants were issued at an adjusted subscription
price of HK$1.65 per share, resulting in the issue of
24,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company.

During the year ended 31st March, 2011, directors and
employees of the Company exercised share options amounting
to 17,820,000 shares and 12,430,000 shares, at an adjusted
exercise price of HK$1.547 per share and HK$1.604 per share,
respectively.

On 22nd November, 2010, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement for the issue of 50,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each under a top-up placing at
a price of HK$4.38 per share, which represented a discount
of approximately 12% to the closing market price of the
Company’s shares of HK$4.98 per share quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 22nd November, 2010, the last trading date prior
to the entering into of the subscription agreement. The new
shares were issued on 3rd December, 2010 under the general
mandate granted to the board of directors on 24th August,
2010.

During the year ended 31st March, 2011, 100,000 shares and
120,000 shares were repurchased by the Company on 11th
January, 2011 and 24th February, 2011, respectively, at share
prices ranging from HK$3.63 per share to HK$4.12 per share.

The new bonus shares issued on 26th August, 2009
were not entitled to the final dividend for the year
ended 31st March, 2009. All other shares issued
during both years rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all respects.

Hrat - (&)

(o)

\
N
N

REBEE-_ZE-—ZTF=ZA=+—8I*F
B R K& 3 (a) BT ek 2 R 3% 4T A% AT
9,000,000 7 R B E L TR 1.8158
TZREBEET ARB B MBI
9,000,000 X HF R MEECA0E L2 il
A% o

B b X # 2 & & AR %
24,000,000 19 SRAXHERE B 2 T % 1.65)8
T EHBERBERET - KRB R
% 17 24,000,000 A% & X H {20.1078 7T
ZERRR -

RBEE-_ZTE——&E=A=+—HIt&
BER  ARRZEZREEHRNER
15478 T R B 1.6047% T 2 &K%
1T B 17 % & 17,820,000 & B 15 &
12,430,000 f&R% 10 2 BE R4 -

R-ZZE—ZTF+—A=+=H  AQ7F
I REME - UWEBR4.38B (WA
NARHR_E—ZTFE+—A=+=H
GIARBHBAZEERSH)RBR
FTEnTh 2 T (B % 4.98 8 LT 4
12%) 2 BRIRIZ L BB IR E 51T
50,000,000 f% & AX E H0.1078 7T Z #
L@ UWREIRE - IO R T —
TZFE+_A=ZARBR=_ZT—ZFNA
ZtNERTESS —MIRERIT -

REE-FT——F=A=+—HLFE
A ARADHR=F——F—A+—
AR—F——F_A-tWEUNTE
B 3.63BLEBM 4128 2 ERER
100,000 A et & 120,000 Bz 7 ©

—EENENA T ABEITZH

ARt A ZRBE_TTENF=H
=t HLEFEZRERE - RMF
NETZABEMBBRMNES T HEE
B2RBRNDERRSES °
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Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the Company’s special general meeting held on
3rd November, 2003, the Company adopted a Share
Option Scheme.

Under the Share Option Scheme, options may be
granted to any director, employee, consultant,
customer, supplier or advisor of the Group or a
company in which the Company holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company (the “Eligible Persons”), the
trustee of the Eligible Persons or a company beneficially
owned by the Eligible Persons. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain quality
personnel and other persons to provide incentive to
them to contribute to the business and operation of
the Group. The total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme as at the date of
this report is 25,320 shares. No Eligible Persons shall
be granted an option in any 12-month period for such
number of shares (issued and to be issued) which in
aggregate would exceed 1% of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the last day of such 12-month
period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company has been obtained in accordance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. The exercisable period is determined by
the directors of the Company, which shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be held
before it can be exercised. The exercise price per
share payable on the exercise of an option equals to
the highest of:
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IR B R RS

REARBANR_FZ=F+—H=H
RITZBREFRIASG LBEBZERR
@I ARADHUE MR BB RUE T

£

RIFBRERE  BRETETAA
AZEMNES  AEEXRAFHFE
FUNEIWA: 3 W A/NCIE % /NCId 1))
NEIZIEES - Bl - BF - #HER
BHAATEEBALD  EERA
T ERAREGERATERRE Z
NAE] - BREFTEIEEREBSAT K
HhALT4H TE) LRSI BEER
SERBARBAEE X REEE
HEB o RAERE B E - B2
H TN A 317 2 IR1D #8805 25,320
B o BB RFES EMRA - BRIE
EARQRRELE - TRIFER+=
EREEA  G@ERAT I EERT
B RBROHEE (BEBTRETET)E
HEBARATRNZ T @A PR &
B—BZEBETRA 1% 2 ERE -
TEHRARFESETE - S8
BERLBHEH 5 B RiEE
RETENVERBZ&EAR - &£
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for

the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant;

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 2nd
November, 2013.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Number of shares under options

RESEBRETS(E)

(@) MROEE

(b) BORELE BEBRME AR
BRAHREREHE &

© BHRBEREDYEANEEL:
BRSPS A RERAH S
BF U E

BRESESE—EARN BEE-Z
—=F+—H=ZH-

FrEBRAEERI ZFBWT

BREET2RHEA
Adjustment Original Adjusted
on bonus Exercised exercise exercise
At issue of At during At Vesting  Exercisable price price
Date of grant 1.4.2009 shares 31.3.2010 the year 31.3.2011 period  period per share per share
HZZRAE KRR W-R-%F RZZ--% FRER 3SR
b=t mA-A #E ZRt-B RERGE  ZASt-H BREE TARER ik ikl
(note) (note)
W) hi)
To directors of the Company:
RFRLHES:
16.1.2004 16,200,000 1620000 17820000  (17,820,000) - NI 16.1.2004 to HKS1.702 HKS1.547
“TEME-R1iA S G A 17 KT 7
“RELF
-AT7BE
3-mE
-At1A
To other employees:
RFAMES:
4,6.2007 11,300,000 1,130,000 12430000 (12,430,000 - Nil 4.6.2007 to HKS1.764 HKS1.604
“ERLENARA g 362017 1T64T 160487

Note: The number of shares under the outstanding options and the
exercise price have been adjusted upon the bonus issue of
shares on the basis of one new ordinary share for every ten
ordinary shares held on 26th August, 2009.

=
NAMAE
E-tE
A=A

Hrat o RTT R Z IR E B RITEENIK
ZARER-_ZZAFENA-TRAE
FE+REBRESE RN LRk zE
E)RETHE -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31st March, 2011, all the
granted share options under the Share Option Scheme
were exercised on 13th October, 2010, 2nd November,
2010 and 22nd November, 2010 respectively. The
share prices at the date of exercise were HK$3.52,
HK$4.25 and HK$4.98 respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
committed for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years inclusive 8 -—Z2FRHF
(BIEEEME)

Over five years AFLAE

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of 2 to 5 years (2010: 1
to 6 years) and rentals are fixed.

94 R A &ITEBEABR D T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

REEEBRETS(E)

REBEE-_ZE—F=A=+—HLHF
EA - BREFEETHEERLEZ
BRESIN-_Z—ZF+A+=
B —Z—ZF+—A-HEZ=-F—
TE+—A -+ RETE - RITE
BB IRDEE DRI ABIE2ET -
4,25/ 4.98 T °

REBYPR - NEEE AR B RRE
PAHE 2 R EHE X N REHEER
17 - EIHAEAT ¢

2010
—E—FF
HK$’000
FET

86,584 95,574

67,688 53,715
- 799

154,272 150,088

KEHERBEASEERES THA
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

2010
—E-TF
HK$’000
FA&T
Capital expenditure in respect of eV BHREA
the acquisition of property, plant BRI A ERBEEWE
and equipment contracted for but S EN NS
not provided in the consolidated B A EE

financial statements 90,786 —

REHMMK > NREBAGERLERE—
FRF 10 i R DA S5 4 7 A 88 AR 86 T S AF hiR
B BARRFERRT 2 ST

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was
committed to pay royalties for the usage of a fashion
brand for manufacture and trading of apparels with a
minimum guarantee royalties payment as follows:

2010
—E2-ZF
HK$’000
FET

Within one year —FNRN 1,888 1,646
In the second to fifth years inclusive #_ZEFRHF
(BEEEME) 6,383 8,249

8,271 9,895

B Lot S KRB RSN - REBIRA
REFEILEFRZ 6% XIThREL

The Group was also subject to pay royalties at 6% on
total net wholesales made per annum on top of the
above minimum guarantee royalties.

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees,
including directors. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

AEBETERMARERER(ER
ER)RIEBRHEFERNREE - %F
B EERAEEZEED AR
B BB RFEAES -
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The retirement scheme cost represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF”
Scheme) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of independent
trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging
from 5% to 15% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on the length of service with the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme subject to a maximum monthly contribution
amount of HK$1,000 to an individual, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of
HK$5,715,000 (2010: HK$5,542,000) represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group
in respect of the current accounting period.
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BRRFT B A e AN R B B i ET SR Al
BEZLRENZESHK - WER
A 2= BEUS HRATR % FaT 8l
AP W R R] EFIR A R B R 2

#HK

AE B2 ER BB RN ERDIE
itz 5% 5 5k ET &1 (TORSO J5H &) I
RZZEZEZF+ - ARBRGBIMELTE
At EHRPIR 2 R ERTE TS
(MefE 58 - ZEFEZ2EERN
XBIURAAEF ZESHAH » #2A
SBZEEDH °

ORSOFtEINEE R AKEIFH 2 &
AftFREEES  HERLXREER
FrZ5%E15%  BIRAKEZR
BEMME °

ERBBEEHEIZKE  AEERAE
BT EIE L R AB A E B AR 5% 5T
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K% 1,000%87C © MEBIMMELSE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans disclosed in note 18 net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves including retained profits. The
directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including ER R EWERR
cash and cash equivalents) (BiEREeEER
RLEE)
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHECHEE
Financial liabilities TREE
Amortised cost [ E2) N

AEEEREES  DERAEEE
TERBENHFECE  RAHERR
= E 5 R T SRS F S AmME 2
B9 - AEE Y HEEEE
R -

AREBZEARARBEREBRFEE
REEREISHHENRREE LE
FAREEE 2 |RITEFK)ARKAA
BREANELAER(ETEREETR
AEFHEHE(BRRFREER)) - ARA
EXBFRTEARRE - FRURF
THE—8D  EFEBEEAKAKH
ERERHEBRER - EREEFD
ZE#E - ARESERRERE - B
TR AR BITHEFXELRRE
B FEEBREBERRE -

ST EER
2010
—ET-TF
HK$’000
FET
731,964 322,334
18,548 43,694
410,668 376,210
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale financial assets, trade and other
receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and bank loans. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure as the
majority of the sales were denominated in functional
currency of the relevant group entities. The
management conducted periodical review of exposure
and requirements of various currencies, and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arise. The management considers that
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is not
significant.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to floating-rate bank borrowings and bank
balances. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise. The fair value interest rate risk on bank
deposits is insignificant as the fixed deposits are short-
term.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and
benchmark loan rates of financial institutions set by the
PRC arising from the Group’s borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings and bank balances at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
that the bank balances and bank loans outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2010: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease is used for bank loans
and a 10 basis points (2010: 10 basis points) increase
or decrease is used for bank balances when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

BHEREERERERE(E)

AR ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011

HE2—

F——F=f=1+—HIFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

For bank loans, if interest rates had been 50 basis
points (2010: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post
tax profit for the year ended 31st March, 2011 would
decrease/increase by HK$1,258,000 (2010: post tax
profit would decrease/increase by HK$1,534,000).

For bank balances, if interest rates had been 10 basis
points (2010: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post
tax profit for the year ended 31st March, 2011 would
increase/decrease by HK$502,000 (2010: post tax
profit would increase/decrease by HK$225,000).

Other price risk

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets at the
end of the reporting period exposed the Group to
equity security price risk. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on unlisted equity securities
issued by two private entities. In view of the amount
of available-for-sale financial assets at the end of the
reporting period, the management considers that the
Group’s exposure to equity price risk is not significant.

RAEKRITEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR I

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31st March, 2011 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit standings and state-
owned banks with good reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of counterparties and customers.

BHEREERERERE(E)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31st March, 2011, the Group
has available unutilised short-term bank loan facilities of
approximately HK$818 million (2010: HK$840 million).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period. The amounts
included below for variable interest rate bank loans are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

RAEKRITEBEFRLDF Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

2011

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bank loans

2010

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bank loans

=
HisemAR

B A RE AN
BiTEH

=
HisemAR

B 5 RE AN
BiTEH

Weighted

average

effective

interest rate
il 23

LTIk

NA MR
1.98% — 8.12%
(note) (#iz)

NATER
1.76% — 4.93%
(note) (#iz)

BHEREERERERE(E)

REBEERR(E)
BB 2 R FEE RS F*
Total
1103 3 months undiscounted Carrying
months tolyear 1to5years  cash flows amount
AERRE
12388 3fAZ1E 1E5% hEAE RfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$:000
AT TAT AT AT AT
99,633 9,660 - 109,293 109,293
72,239 177,229 61,337 310,800 301,375
171,872 186,889 61,337 420,098 410,668
61,294 8,054 - 69,348 69,348
168,422 52,590 92,603 313,615 306,862
229,716 60,644 92,608 382,963 376,210
Wizt EREL2EDHIR T —FTR_F——

Note: The management made the best estimation of variable-rate
borrowings with reference to HIBOR and benchmark rate of
the People’s Bank of China as at 31st March, 2010 and 2011,

respectively.

FZA=Z+-HZBERRTAERER
PEARBITEEMNEIEHZEEREZ

MR -
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Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables,
bank balances and cash and trade and other payables
approximate to their respective fair values due to the
relatively short maturity of these financial instruments.
The Group’s bank loans are mainly variable-rate
borrowings which are carrying at prevailing market rate.
The carrying amounts approximate to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation technigques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

RAEKRITEBEFRLDF Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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e B R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial
assets
Listed equity securities
Managed fund portfolio

Available-for-sale financial
assets
Listed equity securities
Managed fund portfolio

TRMEERTBMAEBEZAFEE)

RGE BN FERZ L FEG

BE(E&)

AL EcmEE
TR AR 5 136 - 136
EEEGIKERS — 10,233 10,233
136 10,233 10,369

2010
—E-FF

Level 1 Level 3 Total
£ EI3H% R 24
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET F&ET

AtHESmEE
TR AN EE 5 167 — 167
ERASIRERS — 4,062 4,062
167 4,062 4,229
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements AHHESHEESEIN LA TETE

of available-for-sale financial assets

At 1st April, 2009

Total losses recognised in asset
revaluation reserve

Disposal

At 31st March, 2010

Total gain recognised in asset
revaluation reserve

Addition

Disposal

At 31st March, 2011

ZHER
Managed
fund
portfolio
EEES
REAE
HK$’000
FET
RZZETNFMHA—H 6,320
REESHREERRZ
EiEEE (1,172)
e (1,086)
R—E—ZEF=A=+—H 4,062
REEERRERRZ
W zs4B%E 4,590
NE 1,947
HE (366)
RZE——F=A=+—H 10,233

Of the total gains for the year included in profit or loss, &t AB=@mZFRKEEFESF - 249,000 %
gain of HK$249,000 (2010: HK$343,000) relates to  TT(ZZT —Z4 : 343,000 % 7T ) B 1A 2
managed fund portfolio held at the end of the reporting HIARFEZBEEESREHASEH - HE
period. Fair value gains on disposal of managed fund BEESKREHAE 2 A FEKEF AR

portfolio are included in other income.

106 R A &ITEBEABR D T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of RZE——FR_E—FF = H
which are limited liability companies, at 31st March, Z=+—HB KRB ZEEHER A
2011 and 2010 are as follows: (2HHRERARFBEET
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid
operations share capital/registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary HeL/ and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KEARER Bi/BEnY  CRORARRA/ARRE4ER KA ERTRATE/ RER 2L TEXR
2010 Directly Indirectly
555 g% i
2010 2010
% %
La Suisse Watch Company, ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Watch trading
Limited Bk HK$1,000 HK$1,000 FRIEH
RtRTARAR EZER1,0008T  ZAR1000%T
Oriental Watch (China) Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Watch trading and
Company Limited &4 HK$1,000 HK$1,000 investment holding
Fh&A(hE)ERAT EER1000BL  EAR1000ET FREERREER
Qriental Watch Gompany Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Watch trading
Limited &b HK$1,000 HK$1,000 FREH
Rh&TERAA BER10008T  EER1000ET
Oriental Watch (Macau) Macau Ordinary shares ~ Ordinary shares 50 50 50 50 Watch trading
Company Limited i MOP$25,000 MOP$25,000 FREE
R (RF)RRAT EER LRk

B0008FL 2500057

Sharp Beauty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share Ordinary share - - 10 70 Investment holding
ERERAT B HKS$1 HKS1 RER
EER1%T ERR1ET

Unex Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Property holding

FURRRRLA Bk HKS2 HK$2 GRS
EBR2En  EAERET

—Z — — F F 3, Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RR

For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid
operations share capital/registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary AR/ and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KEARER Bi/Eenk  CRORMRRA/HREEHEXR KORFBAZBRTRAEE/ RRER LA IEER
2010 Directly Indirectly
5% B 13
2010 2010
5% CE-%F
% %
FEEVROEEESER  Manland China  Registeredand  Registered and - = 100 100 Watch trading for a
27 (Shanghai Oriental 8 paid-up capital paid-up capital term of 50 years
Watch International US$200,000 1S$200,000 commencing 3rd
Trading Co., Ltd) aftkeaEs  EfREGER January, 2001
200,000%7 200000£7 FRIEE %%
—E—- A=Al
0%
HEEAYESERAT Manland China ~ Registeredand ~ Registered and - = 100 100 Watch trading for a
(Shanghai Key Machine paid-up capital paid-up capital term of 50 years
Trading Co., Ltd) 1S$200,000 1S$200,000 commencing 17th
iftkeaEs  ERRESER October, 2003
200,000 7 200,000%7 FREH B33
“ETATEAR
ia0E
FhEfa(ME)ESEBL  Manand China  Registeredand  Registered and - = 100 100 Watch trading for a
7] (Oriental Watch (China) ~ H& paid-up capital paid-up capital term of 30 years
Trading Co., Ltd) US$42,000,000  US$34,000,000 commencing 14th
iftkeaEs  EfREGER June, 2005
42,000,000%%  34,000000%T FREE B33
REAATRER
BRI
B LB)REESAR Manland China ~ Registeredand ~ Registered and - = 10 70 Apparel business
Al hE paid-up capital  paic-up capital REEH

RMB180,000  RVB180,000
aMREARE  ERRCHER
ARE 1800007 AR 180,007

RAEKRITEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid
operations share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary HRL/ and paid-up capital
i} PR Bi/BEny  CRARARRA/ARRE4ER
2010

—< =

Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
registered capital held by the Company Principal activities

KGR ZERTRARE/ EREL 21 H IRRH

BIZ(LB)REZFAMRAT  Manlend China  Registeredand  Registered and
(Sharp Beauty (Shangha) paid-up capital paid-up capital
Apperel Trading Co., Ltd) RMB180,000 RMB180,000

AMREAER  ERREEER
AEX180000%  AR%180,0007

Shanghai Oriental Watch International Trading Co.,
Ltd., Shanghai Key Machine Trading Co., Ltd. and
Oriental Watch (China) Trading Co., Ltd. are wholly
foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time
during the year.

Directly Indirectly
E# fi#
2010 2010
E-%F E-%F
% %
- 10 70 Apparel business

REEB

EERMERTEREZBRAA - £
BEIVEZERABERT KT
(PE)EZERQBIINFEMKILZ
BINERE -

ERRHINEFRREEREAKE
FENBEZARRMERR - EF
RS LTI ELAL KT A R 2 FEE
AlgEHERBOTLE

B M B D B AR S AE AT FE 4
BAERKERERES
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BEr—_F——F=F=+—HIFEE

Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEEAS RN

ITREEEBABRARAES - FX

The key management personnel are the directors of

the Company. The remuneration of directors during the ZEEMET
year was as follows:

2010
—ET-TF
HK$’000
FAET
Short-term benefits 72 BRtE 37,038 26,162
Post-employment benefits B 12 42 7 1,621 1,602
38,659 27,764

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

EEMeHFMNEESEREARR
LG8 IEETE

o

110

RAERTHE

2010
— T
HK$’000
FET

Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WIS - R R 962 1,177
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR 2IZE 122,626 122,626
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRHEE 1,911 —
125,499 123,803

Current assets MEEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E e 812,189 506,459
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 265 74
812,454 506,533

[E & BR 2 & Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31st March, 2011
BE—_F——F=ZF=+—HIFE

Current liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Taxation payable

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

mMEEIE
HoAth & 5 BR K
FEST B B8 A Bl FRIR
FEfR IR

MEBEFE
BEFE
BN
e
s

AR

2010

—T-TF

HK$'000

TIETL

23,563 12,733
57,335 47,165
407 1,411
81,305 61,309
731,149 445,224
856,648 569,027
46,951 38,948
809,697 530,079
856,648 569,027
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE

RESULTS
Turnover

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

S
X8

ERIp
S BRI

FEREH

BERER

BEMAE
BEAE

BmBE

Year ended 31st March,
BE=A=t—-HLFE

2007 2008 2009 2010
e —TTN\E “TTNE —T-TF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
2,645,914 2,922,342 2,538,781 3,242,643 3,849,172
115,331 190,295 122,495 146,257 272,189
(20,457) (34,374) (22,180) (33,710) (52,760)
94,874 155,921 100,315 112,547 219,429
At 31st March,
R=B=1+-8
2007 2008 2009 2010
“TT+E “ETN\E “ETNE “T-TF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
1,252,986 1,574,331 1,773,027 1,816,892 2,370,974
(403,168) (411,964) (528,516) (421,249) (506,299)
849,818 1,162,367 1,244,511 1,395,643 1,864,675

RAEKITEBEFRLDF Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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